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BSE Limited,

PhirozeJeejeebhoy Towers,

DalalStreet, Mumbai - 400 001.

Scrip Code: 5L1756

Subject: Notice of the 3l'tAnnual General Meeting scheduled to be held on Friday,the

23,d day of August 2024, through Video Conferencing (VC)/ Other Audio-Visual

Means(OAVM) and the Annual Report for the Financial Year2023-24.

Dear Sir/Madam,

We wish to inform you that the 3lstAnnual General Meeting [AGM/Meeting) of the

Company is scheduled to be held on Friday,AugustZ3, 2024, at 3:00 PM IST through

Video Conferencing [VC)/ Other Audio-Visual Means (OAVM) in accordance with the

circulars / notificatrons issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs and the Secunties and

Exchange Board of India to transact the business, as set forth in the Notice convening the

Meeting.

The schedule for the AGM is given below:

S,No Events Days, Dates & Time

1 "Cut off"f "Record Date" to vote on

the proposed resolutions and for the

purpose of determining the Members

Friday, 16th August 2024



eligible to receive dividend for the

financial year 2023-24

-z E-voting commencement Tuesday, 20thAugust 2024,09,00 AM 1ST

3 E-voting ends Thursday, 22nd August2024,05,00 PM IST

4 Book Closure commencement Satu lday, 1.7 t Au1ust 2024

5 Book Closure ends F riday, 23.d August 2024

Pursuant to Regulation 34[1) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India [Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ['Listing Regulations'], please

find enclosed herewith the Annual Report for the Financial Year 2023-24 and the Notice

convening the 31'tAGM being sent to all members in electronic mode.

The aforementioned Report and the Notice of the AGM are also made available on the

website of the Company i.e,, https://www.afslindia.in/.

Kindly take the above on record.

Thanking you,

Yours faithfully,

FoT ABIRAMI FINANCIAL SERVICES (INDIA) TIMITED

ChitraSivaramakrishnan

Wholetime Director

DIN:00292725

Enclosed: As above



ABIRAMI  FINANCIAL  SERVICES
(INDIA)  LIMITED

 
THIRTY FIRST ANNUAL REPORT  2023 – 2024

 

REGISTERED OFFICE

OLD N0.11, NEW No.2, PARTHASARATHYPURAM, 2nd STREET,

T.NAGAR,  CHENNAI – 600 017.

CORPORATE WEBSITE: www.afslindia.in

E-MAIL ID :  abicompliance@afslindia.in    abi@afslindia.in
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NOTICE TO SHAREHOLDERS

NOTICE is hereby given that the Thirty First Annual General Meeting of the Members of Abirami Financial Services (India) 
Limited will be held on Friday, the 23rd Day of August 2024, at 3.00 PM IST through Video Conferencing (“VC”)/ Other Audio 
Visual Means (“OAVM”), to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:
1.	 To consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the Financial Year ended 31st March, 

2024, together with the Reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon and in this regard, to consider and if 
thought fit, to pass with or without modification the following resolution as Ordinary Resolution:-

	 “RESOLVED THAT Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the Financial Year ended on 31st March 2024, 
together with the Reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon, for the year ended 31st March, 2024, be 
and are hereby considered and adopted.”

2.	 To declare Dividend of 25% on Equity Shares for the financial year 2023-24.

3.	 To appoint a Director in place of Mrs. Muthulakshmi Ganesh (DIN:00286658), Director, who retires by rotation and, 
being eligible, seeks re-appointment as a Director and in this regard, to consider and if thought fit,  to pass with or 
without modification the following resolution as Ordinary Resolution: 

	 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, Mrs. Muthulakshmi Ganesh 
(DIN: 00286658), who retires by rotation at this Meeting and being eligible, has offered herself for re-appointment, 
be and is hereby re-appointed as a Director of the Company, liable to retire by rotation.”

		  BY ORDER OF THE BOARD
 

		 (Sd/-) 
Place: Chennai	  Chitra Sivaramakrishnan 
Date : 06/07/2024	 Wholetime Director 
	 DIN: 00292725

NOTES: 
1.	 Details pursuant to Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI Listing Regulations and Secretarial Standard on General Meetings 

issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India, in respect of the Director seeking re-appointment at this AGM 
are also annexed.

2.	 The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) has vide its General Circular Nos. 14/2020 dated April 8, 2020 and 17/2020 
dated April 13, 2020, in relation to “Clarification on passing of ordinary and special resolutions by companies under 
the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder on account of the threat posed by “COVID-19”, General 
Circular Nos. 20/2020 dated May 5, 2020, 10/2022 dated December 28, 2022 and subsequent circulars issued in this 
regard, the latest being 09/2023 dated September 25, 2023 in relation to “Clarification on holding of Annual General 
Meeting (“AGM”) through Video Conferencing (VC) or Other Audio Visual Means (OAVM)”, (collectively referred to 
as “MCA Circulars”) permitted the holding of the AGM through VC/OAVM, without the physical presence of the 
Members at a common venue. In compliance with the MCA Circulars, the AGM of the Company is being held through 
VC /OAVM. The registered office of the Company shall be deemed to be the venue for the AGM.

3.	 Pursuant to the provisions of the Act, a Member entitled to attend and vote at the AGM is entitled to appoint a proxy 
to attend and vote on his/her behalf and the proxy need not be a Member of the Company. Since this AGM is being 
held pursuant to the MCA Circulars through VC/OAVM, physical attendance of Members has been dispensed with. 
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Accordingly, the facility for appointment of proxies by the Members will not be available for the AGM and hence the 
Proxy Form and Attendance Slip are not annexed to this Notice.

4.	 Institutional/Corporate Shareholders (i.e., other than individuals/ HUF, NRI, etc.) are required to send a scanned 
copy (PDF/JPEG format) of its Board or governing body resolution/authorisation etc., authorising its representative 
to attend the AGM through VC/OAVM on its behalf and to vote through remote e-voting. The said resolution/
authorisation shall be sent to the Company by e-mail to abi@afslindia.in.

5.	 Since the AGM will be held through VC / OAVM, the route map of the venue of the Meeting is not annexed hereto.

6.	 In compliance with the MCA Circulars and SEBI Circular dated, Notice of the AGM along with the Annual Report for 
the FY 2023-24 is being sent only through electronic mode to those Members whose e-mail addresses are registered 
with the Company/Depositories. Members may note that the Notice and Annual Report for the FY 2023-24 will 
also be available on the Company’s website www.afslindia.in, website of the Stock Exchange i.e., BSE Limited at  
www.bseindia.com and on the website of CDSL – www.evotingindia.com. In case any member is desirous of obtaining 
hard copy of the Annual Report for the financial year 2023-24 and Notice of the 31st AGM of the Company, may send 
request to the company via email at abi@afslindia.in mentioning DPID and Client ID.

7.	 For receiving all communication (including Annual Report) from the Company electronically:

i)	 Members holding shares in physical mode and who have not registered / updated their e-mail address with the 
Company are requested to register / update the same by writing to the Company with details of folio number 
and attaching a self-attested copy of PAN card at abi@afslindia.in

ii)	 Members holding shares in electronic form are requested to intimate immediately any change in their e-mail 
ID / contact number/ address / bank mandates to the Depository Participants with whom they are maintaining 
their demat accounts.

8.	 The Register of Members and the Share Transfer books of the Company will remain closed from Saturday, August17, 
2024 to Friday, August23, 2024 (both days inclusive) for the purpose of ensuing AGM of the Company.

9.	 The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding maintained under Section 170 
of Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and Register of Contracts or Arrangements in which directors are interested 
maintained under Section 189 of the Act will be available electronically for inspection by the members during the 
time of AGM. Members can inspect the same by sending an email to abi@afslindia.in

10.	 The Board of Directors has appointed Ms. Sindhuja Porselvam, Practicing Company Secretary (CP No.23622) as the 
Scrutinizer for conducting remote e-voting process in a fair and transparent manner. 

11.	 The Scrutinizer shall submit her report to the Chairman of the meeting, on the votes cast in favour or against, after 
scrutiny.

12.	 The results declared along with the Consolidated Scrutinizer’s Report shall be placed on the website of the Company 
www.afslindia.in. The results shall simultaneously be communicated to the Stock Exchange(s).

13.	 The Ministry of Corporate Affairs had notified provisions relating to unpaid / unclaimed dividend under Sections 
124 and 125 of Companies Act, 2013 and Investor Education and Protection Fund (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and 
Refund) Rules, 2016. As per these Rules, dividends which are not encashed / claimed by the shareholder for a period of 
seven consecutive years shall be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) Authority. The IEPF 
Rules mandate the companies to transfer the shares of shareholders whose dividends remain unpaid / unclaimed 
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for a period of seven consecutive years to the demat account of IEPF Authority. Hence, the Company urges all the 
shareholders to encash / claim their respective dividend during the prescribed period. 

14.	 As per Regulation 40 of SEBI Listing Regulations, as amended, all requests for transfer of securities including 
transmission and transposition requests shall be processed only in dematerialized form. In view of this and to 
eliminate all risks associated with physical shares and for ease of portfolio management, Members holding shares in 
physical form are requested to consider converting their holdings to dematerialised form.

15.	 Members may please note that SEBI vide its Circular No. SEBI/HO/MIRSD/MIRSD_RTAMB/P/CIR/2022/8 dated January 
25, 2022 has mandated the Listed Companies to issue securities in dematerialized form only while processing service 
requests viz. Issue of duplicate securities certificate; claim from unclaimed suspense account; renewal/exchange 
of securities certificate; endorsement; sub-division/splitting of securities certificate; consolidation of securities 
certificates/folios; transmission and transposition. Accordingly, Members are requested to make service requests 
by submitting a duly filled and signed Form ISR – 4, the format of which is available on the Company’s website at  
www.afslindia.in. It may be noted that any service request can be processed only after the folio is KYC Compliant.

16.	 Members who hold shares in physical form in multiple folios in identical names or joint holding in the same order of 
names are requested to send the share certificates to the Company/RTA for consolidation into a single folio.

17.	 Facility of joining the AGM through VC / OAVM shall be kept open 15 minutes before and after the time scheduled 
for the AGM and will be available for members on first come first serve basis. This will not include large Shareholders 
(Shareholders holding 2% or more shareholding), Promoters, Institutional Investors, Directors, Key Managerial 
Personnel, the Chairpersons of the Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Shareholders 
and Investor Grievance Committee, Auditors etc. who are allowed to attend the AGM without restriction on account 
of first come first served basis.

18.	 The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted for the purpose of ascertaining 
the quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013.

19.	 Members having any query or desiring any information pertaining to Annual Accounts are requested to write to the 
Company at abi@afslindia.in, at an early date to enable the Company to answer Members’ queries at the Meeting.

PROCEDURE FOR REMOTE E-VOTING AND E-VOTING AT THE AGM:

1.	 Voting through electronic means

a.	 Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the Companies 
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and Regulation 44 of SEBI (Listing Obligations & 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 (as amended), and MCA Circulars, dated April 08, 2020, April 13, 
2020 and May 05, 2020 the Company is providing facility of remote e-voting to its Members in respect of the 
business to be transacted at the AGM/EGM. For this purpose, the Company has entered into an agreement 
with Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) for facilitating voting through electronic means, as the 
authorized e-Voting’s agency. The facility of casting votes by a member using remote e-voting as well as the 
e-voting system on the date of the EGM/AGM will be provided by CDSL.

b.	 Any person, who acquires the shares of the Company and becomes a Member after the Company emails the 
Notice of the 31st AGM and holds the shares as on the cut-off date, Friday the 16th August 2024, may follow 
the instructions given below for participating in the AGM and casting their vote through remote e-Voting or 
through e-Voting during the AGM.
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c.	 A person, whose name is recorded in the Register of Members or whose name appears as the beneficial owner 
in the records of the depositories as on the cut-off date alone can avail the facility of remote e-voting or cast 
vote through e-voting during the AGM

d.	 The remote voting period begins on Tuesday, 20th August, 2024 at 9.00 AM and ends on Thursday, 22nd 
August, 2024 at 05.00 PM. During this period shareholders’ of the Company, holding shares either in physical 
form or in Dematerialized form, may cast their vote electronically. The cut-off date (record date) is Friday, 
16th August 2024. The e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter. Once the vote on the 
resolution is cast by the Member, the Member shall not be allowed to change it subsequently.

e.	 Shareholders who have already voted prior to the meeting date would not be entitled to vote at the meeting 
venue.

f.	 Pursuant to SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated 09.12.2020, under Regulation 44 of 
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, 
listed entities are required to provide remote e-voting facility to its shareholders, in respect of all shareholders’ 
resolutions. However, it has been observed that the participation by the public non-institutional shareholders/
retail shareholders is at a negligible level. 

g.	 Currently, there are multiple e-voting service providers (ESPs) providing e-voting facility to listed entities in 
India. This necessitates registration on various ESPs and maintenance of multiple user IDs and passwords by 
the shareholders. 

h.	 In order to increase the efficiency of the voting process, pursuant to a public consultation, it has been decided 
to enable e-voting to all the demat account holders, by way of a single login credential, through their demat 
accounts/ websites of Depositories/ Depository Participants. Demat account holders would be able to cast 
their vote without having to register again with the ESPs, thereby, not only facilitating seamless authentication 
but also enhancing ease and convenience of participating in e-voting process.

i.	 In terms of SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility 
provided by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote 
through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are 
advised to update their mobile number and email Id in their demat accounts in order to access e-Voting facility.

j.	 Pursuant to above said SEBI Circular, Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meetings for Individual 
shareholders holding securities in Demat mode CDSL/NSDL is given below:

Type of shareholders Login Method

Individual 
Shareholders holding 
securities in Demat 
mode with CDSL 
Depository

1)	 Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login through their existing 
user id and password. Option will be made available to reach e-Voting page without 
any further authentication. The users to login to Easi / Easiest are https://web.cdslindia.
com/myeasi/home/login requested or visit CDSL website www.cdslindia.com and click 
on Login icon and select New System Myeasi tab.

2)	 After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e-Voting option for 
eligible companies where the evoting is in progress as per the information provided by 
company. On clicking the evoting option, the user will be able to see e-Voting page of 
the e-Voting service provider for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period 
or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. Additionally, there is also links 
provided to access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers i.e. CDSL/NSDL/KARVY/
LINKINTIME, so that the user can visit the e-Voting service providers’ website directly.
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Type of shareholders Login Method

3)	 If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available at cdsl website 

www.cdslindia.com and click on login & New System Myeasi Tab and then click on 

registration option.

4)	 Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing Demat Account 

Number and PAN No. from a e-Voting link available on  www.cdslindia.com home page. 

The system will authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as 

recorded in the Demat Account. After successful authentication, user will be able to see 

the e-Voting option where the e-voting is in progress and also able to directly access 

the system of all e-Voting Service Providers.

Individual 
Shareholders holding 
securities in demat 
mode with NSDL 
Depository

1)	 If you are already registered for NSDL IDeAS facility, please visit the e-Services website 

of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: https://eservices.nsdl.com 

either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Services is 

launched, click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login” which is available under 

‘IDeAS’ section. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID and Password. 

After successful authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services. Click on 

“Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting services and you will be able to see e-Voting page. 

Click on company name or e-Voting service provider name and you will be re-directed 

to e-Voting service provider website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting 

period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

2)	 If the user is not  registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is available at 

https://eservices.nsdl.com.  Select “Register Online for IDeAS “Portal or click   at https://

eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp

3)	 Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: 

https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the 

home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available 

under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will open. You will have to enter 

your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number hold with NSDL), Password/

OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the screen. After successful authentication, 

you will be redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. 

Click on company name or e-Voting service provider name and you will be redirected 

to e-Voting service provider website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting 

period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

Individual 
Shareholders (holding 
securities in demat 
mode) login through 
their Depository 
Participants

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through your Depository 
Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility.  After Successful login, you will 
be able to see e-Voting option. Once you click on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to 
NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting 
feature. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider name and you will be redirected 
to e-Voting service provider website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period 
or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.
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Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID / Password are advised to use Forget User ID and Forget 
Password option available at above mentioned website.

Help desk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues related to login through 
Depository i.e. CDSL and NSDL.

Login type Helpdesk details

Individual Shareholders 
holding securities in Demat 
mode with CDSL

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL helpdesk 
by sending a request at helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at 
1800225533.

Individual Shareholders 
holding securities in Demat 
mode with NSDL

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL 
helpdesk by sending a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at toll free  
no.: 1800 1020 990 and 1800 22 44 30.

k.	 Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for physical shareholders and shareholders other 
than individual holding in Demat form.

i.	 The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com

ii.	 Click on “Shareholders” module.

iii.	 Now Enter your User ID 

a.	 For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID, 

b.	 For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID, 

c.	 Shareholders holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with the 
Company.

iv.	 Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login.

v.	 If you are holding shares in Demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and voted on an 
earlier voting of any company, then your existing password is to be used. 

vi.	 If you are a first time user follow the steps given below:

For Physical Shareholders and  other than individual Shareholders holding 
shares in demat

PAN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax Department (Applicable 
for both demat shareholders as well as physical shareholders)

•	 Shareholders who have not updated their PAN with the Company/Depository 
Participant are requested to use the sequence number sent by Company/RTA or 
contact Company/RTA.

Dividend Bank 
Details

OR Date of Birth 
(DOB)

Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format) as recorded 
in your demat account or in the company records in order to login.

•	 If both the details are not recorded with the depository or company, please enter 
the member id / folio number in the Dividend Bank details field as mentioned in 
instruction (v).

vii.	 After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab.



9

viii.	 Shareholders holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selection screen. 
However, shareholders holding shares in demat form will now reach ‘Password Creation’ menu wherein 
they are required to mandatorily enter their login password in the new password field. Kindly note that 
this password is to be also used by the demat holders for voting for resolutions of any other company 
on which they are eligible to vote, provided that company opts for e-voting through CDSL platform. It is 
strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep 
your password confidential.

ix.	 For shareholders holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting on the 
resolutions contained in this Notice 

x.	 Click on the EVSN of Abirami Financial Services (India) Limited on which you choose to vote.

xi.	 On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the same the option “YES/
NO” for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies that you assent to the 
Resolution and option NO implies that you dissent to the Resolution.

xii.	 Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILELINK” if you wish to view the entire Resolution details.

xiii.	 After selecting the resolution you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A confirmation box will be 
displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK”, else to change your vote, click on “CANCEL” and 
accordingly modify your vote.

xiv.	 Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

xv.	 You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on “Click here to print” option on the Voting page.

xvi.	 If a Demat account holder has forgotten the login password then Enter the User ID and the image 
verification code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by the system.

xvii.	 There is also an optional provision to upload BR/POA if any Uploaded, which will be made available to 
scrutinizer for verification.

l.	 Additional Facility for Non – Individual Shareholders and Custodians –Remote Voting Only.
•	 Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodian are required to log on to 

www.evotingindia.com and register themselves in the Corporate module.

•	 A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should be emailed to 
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com

•	 After receiving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the admin login and password. The 
Compliance User would be able to link the account(s) for which they wish to vote on.

•	 The list of accounts linked in the login will be mapped automatically & can be delink in case of any wrong 
mapping. 

•	 It is mandatory that, a scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they have 
issued in favour of the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the system for the scrutinizer to 
verify the same.

•	 Alternatively Non Individual shareholders are required to send the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter 
etc. together with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory who are authorized to vote, to 
the Scrutinizer and to the Company at the email address viz; abi@afslindia.in, if they have voted from individual 
tab & not uploaded same in the CDSL e-voting system for the scrutinizer to verify the same.
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INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS ATTENDING THE AGM THROUGH VC/OAVM & E-VOTING DURING MEETING ARE 
AS UNDER:

1.	 The procedure for attending meeting &e-Voting on the day of the AGM same as the instructions mentioned above 
for Remote e-voting.

2.	 The link for VC/OAVM to attend meeting will be available where the EVSN of Company will be displayed after 
successful login as per the instructions mentioned above for e-voting.

3.	 Shareholders who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the meeting. However, they will not 
be eligible to vote at the AGM/EGM.

4.	 Shareholders are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops / IPads for better experience.

5.	 Further shareholders will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to avoid any disturbance 
during the meeting.

6.	 Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop connecting via Mobile 
Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their respective network. It is therefore recommended 
to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches.

7.	 Shareholders who would like to express their views/ask questions during the meeting may register themselves as a 
speaker by sending their request in advance at least 7 days prior to meeting mentioning their name, demat account 
number/folio number, email id, mobile number at abi@afslindia.in The shareholders who do not wish to speak during 
the AGM but have queries may send their queries in advance 7 days prior to meeting mentioning their name, demat 
account number/folio number, email id, mobile number at abi@afslindia.in. These queries will be replied to by the 
company suitably by email. 

8.	 Those shareholders who have registered themselves as a speaker will only be allowed to express their views /ask 
questions during the meeting.

9.	 Only those shareholders, who are present in the AGM through VC/OAVM facility and have not casted their vote on the 
Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through 
e-Voting system available during the EGM/ AGM.

10.	 If any Votes are cast by the shareholders through the e-voting available during the EGM/AGM and if the same 
shareholders have not participated in the meeting through VC/OAVM facility, then the votes cast by such shareholders 
may be considered invalid as the facility of e-voting during the meeting is available only to the shareholders attending 
the meeting.

PROCESS FOR THOSE SHAREHOLDERS WHOSE EMAIL/MOBILE NO. ARE NOT REGISTERED WITH THE COMPANY / 
DEPOSITORIES.

1.	 For Physical shareholders- please provide necessary details like Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned copy of the 
share certificate (front and back), PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy 
of Aadhar Card) by email to Company/RTA email id.-

2.	 For Demat shareholders -, Please update your email id & mobile no. with your respective Depository Participant (DP)

3.	 For Individual Demat shareholders – Please update your email id & mobile no. with your respective Depository 
Participant (DP) which is mandatory while e-Voting & joining virtual meetings through Depository.

If you have any queries or issues regarding attending AGM & e-Voting from the CDSL e-Voting System, you can write an 
email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at 1800 2255 33.
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All grievances connected with the facility for voting by electronic means may be addressed to Mr. Rakesh Dalvi, Sr. Manager, 
(CDSL,) Central Depository Services (India) Limited, AWing, 25th Floor, Marathon Futurex, Mafatlal Mill Compounds,  
N M Joshi Marg, Lower Parel (East), Mumbai - 400013 or send an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or call  on  
1800 2255 33.

Additional information on Directors recommended for re-appointment pursuant to Regulation 36(3) of the 
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, and 
under Secretarial Standards on General Meeting (SS-2) following information are furnished about the directors 
proposed to be re-appointed, vide item no.3 of the notice dated 6th July 2024:

Item no. 3 of the Notice – Information of Mrs.Muthulakshmi Ganesh

Name	 :	 Mrs. Muthulakshmi Ganesh

DIN	 :	 00286658

Age	 :	 70 Years

Qualification	 :	 Master’s Degree in Science. 

Occupation 	 :	 Business

No. of Shares held in the company	 :	 100 Shares

Expertise	  : 	 Mrs.Muthulakshmi Ganesh, a person with marketing and trading experience takes 
keen interest in whatever assignment she takes up. She has been a part of the 
growth journey of the Company and held various positions in different business 
units. She has been instrumental in implementing extensive cost management in 
sourcing and operations. She received her Master’s Degree in Science.

Details of other Directorships / Committee Membership:

S.No Company Position
Committee Membership

Chairman Member

1. Uma Apparels Private Limited Director -- --

2 Yoha Securities Limited
Whole-time 

Director
-- --

3 Sumeru Media And Communications  Private  Limited Director -- --

4 Ashwin Commodities Private Limited Director -- --

Mr. K. V Aiyappan, Director and Mrs. Chitra Sivaramakrishnan, Whole-time Director being related to Mrs. Muthulakshmi 
Ganesh, may be deemed to be interested in the resolution set out in the Notice.
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BOARD’S REPORT

To the Members, 

The Directors have pleasure in presenting before you the Thirty First Annual Report of the Company together with the 
Audited Statements of Accounts for the year ended 31/03/2024.

FINANCIAL  SUMMARY/HIGHLIGHTS, OPERATIONS, STATE OF AFFARIS:
								        (Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars 31/03/24 31/03/23

Revenue from Operations 0 0

Other Income 183.13 1,984.23

Profit / (Loss) before Depreciation, Finance Costs, 
Exceptional items and Tax Expense 111.21 1861.38

Less: Depreciation 0.79 1.81

Profit / (Loss) before Finance Costs, Exceptional items 
and Tax Expense 110.42 1859.57

Less: Finance Costs 1.25 0.04

Profit/(Loss) before Exceptional items and Tax Expense 109.17 1,859.53

Add / (less): Exceptional items 0 0

Profit / (Loss) before Tax Expense 109.17 1,859.53

Less: Tax Expense (Current & Deferred) (35.98) 400

Profit / (Loss) for the year 145.14 1,459.53

CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS, IF ANY:-
NIL

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS:
The Report on Management Discussion and Analysis is annexed herewith.

DECLARATION OF DIVIDEND:-
The Board has proposed 25% dividend for the financial year 2023-24.

BOARD MEETINGS: 
7 (Seven) meetings of the Board of Directors were held during the year. Particulars of attendance by each Director are 
detailed in the Corporate Governance Report, which forms part of this Report.

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANANGERIAL PERSONNEL:
As per the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, Mrs. Muthulakshmi Ganesh shall retire by rotation at the 
ensuing Annual General Meeting and being eligible, offer herself for re-appointment.

Brief particulars of Directors eligible for re-appointment are annexed to the Notice convening the 31st Annual General 
Meeting of the Company. The details of shares held by non-executive directors are given in Corporate Governance Report.

The details of Directors and Key Management Personnel, who were appointed or have resigned during the year are as 
follows:
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Mr. Raju Lal Jat, was appointed as Company Secretary and Compliance Officer with effect from 11th July, 2023 and has 
resigned with effect from 31st May 2024.

Ms. Jyoti Mehra, was appointed as Company Secretary and Compliance Officer with effect from 6th July, 2024.

DECLARATION FROM INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS:

The Company has received declarations from all the Independent Directors of the Company confirming that they meet the 
criteria of independence prescribed under the Act and the SEBI Listing Regulations and they have registered their names in 
the Independent Directors’ Databank. Further, there has been no change in the circumstances which may affect their status 
as Independent Director during the year. The terms and conditions of appointment of the Independent Directors and the 
Director’s familiarization programme are placed on the website of the Company www.afslindia.in. 

COMMITTEES:
As at March 31, 2024, the Company has Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee, Stakeholders 
Relationship Committee and Risk Management Committee.

Details of the composition of the Board and its Committees are provided in the Corporate Governance Report attached to 
this Report.

VIGIL MECHANISM:
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 177(9) of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) 
Rules, 2014 and Regulation 22 of the SEBI Listing Regulations and in accordance with the requirements of Securities and 
Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015, the Board of Directors had approved the Policy 
on Vigil Mechanism / Whistle Blower and the same is hosted on the website of the Company. This Policy inter-alia provides 
a direct access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee. Your Company hereby affirms that no Director/employee has been 
denied access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee.

DIRECTOR’S RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

In pursuance of section 134 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Directors hereby confirm that:

a.	 In the preparation of annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been followed along with proper 
explanation relating to material departures; 

b.	 the directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgements and 
estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company at 
the end of the financial year and profit for company for that period;

c.	 the directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance 
with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud 
and other irregularities;

d.	 the directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and

e.	 the directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company and that such internal financial 
controls are adequate and were operating effectively.

f.	 the directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that 
such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

INFORMATION ABOUT THE FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE / FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE SUBSIDIARIES / ASSOCIATES/JV

The company has no Subsidiary / Joint Venture / Associate.
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ANNUAL RETURN:

Pursuant to Section 92(3) read with Section 134(3)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Annual Return of the Company is 
available on the Company’s website at www.afslindia.in.

AUDITORS 
STATUTORY AUDITORS:

M/s. TSG & ASSOCIATES, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 013133S)were appointed as Statutory Auditors at 
the 29th Annual General Meeting of the company held on 15th September, 2022 to hold office up to the conclusion of the 
34th Annual general meeting of the company. The Statutory Audit report does not contain any qualification, reservation, 
adverse remark or any disclaimer.

SECRETARIAL AUDITOR: 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Act, read with Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 

Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Board, appointed Ms.Sindhuja Porselvam (ACS No. 44831, CP No. 23622), Company 

Secretary in Practice, Chennai to conduct the Secretarial Audit of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2024. 

The Company has received consent from Ms. Sindhuja Porselvam to act as the Secretarial Auditor of the Company.

The Secretarial Audit report for the financial year ended March 31, 2024 in Form No.MR-3 is attached as Annexure-I to this 

Report.

REPLY TO THE QUALIFICATION REMARKS IN SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT:- 
Remark
1.	 The Company has not transferred the unclaimed dividend amount pertaining to the financial year 2015-16 to the Investor 

Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) within the due date.

Management Reply:
1.	 Due to technical constraints, in the MCA V3 portal the forms couldn’t be filed within the due date. Hence there is a procedural 

delay in transferring the funds to IEPF

COST AUDITORS:
The provision of Cost audit as per Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 doesn’t apply to the Company.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE OUTGO:

(A)	 Conservation of energy	 :	 NIL 
(B)	 Technology absorption	 :	 NIL  
(C)	 Foreign exchange earnings and Outgo	 :	 NIL

DEPOSITS:
Your Company has not accepted any deposit within the meaning of provisions of Chapter V of the Act, read with the 
Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 for the year ended March 31, 2024.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS:

SECURED LOANS	 :	  NIL 
UNSECURED LOANS	 :	 NIL  
CURRENT/NON-CURRENT INVESTMENTS	 :	 Rs. 89.34 Lakhs 
GUARANTEES	 :	 NIL 
SECURITIES EXTENDED	 :	 NIL
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RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY:

The company has put in place the Risk Management policy and procedures for identification, assessment, management, 
monitoring and minimization of risks.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILTY POLICY :

The present Net worth / turnover of the company does not require compliance with CSR.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS: 

In line with the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 and amendment to the Listing Regulations, your Company 
has formulated a Policy on Related Party Transactions. The Policy intends to ensure that proper reporting, approval and 
disclosure processes are in place for all transactions between the Company and Related Parties.

All Related Party Transactions are placed before the Audit Committee for review and approval. Related Party Transactions 
which are of repetitive nature are entered at market price and are at Arm’s Length Basis. Accordingly, the disclosure of 
Related Party Transactions as required under Section 134(3)(h) of the Companies Act, 2013, in Form AOC-2 is attached as 
Annexure II.

ANNUAL EVALUATION: 

The Board of Directors has carried out an annual evaluation of its own performance, board committees, and individual 
directors pursuant to the provisions of the Act and SEBI Listing Regulations.

The performance of the board was evaluated by the Board after seeking inputs from all the directors on the basis of criteria 
such as the board composition and structure, effectiveness of board processes, information and functioning, etc.

The performance of the committees was evaluated by the Board after seeking inputs from the committee members on the 
basis of criteria such as the composition of committees, effectiveness of committee meetings, etc. The above criteria are 
broadly based on the Guidance Note on Board Evaluation issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India. In a separate 
meeting of independent directors, performance of non-independent directors, the Board as a whole and Chairman of the 
Company was evaluated, taking into account the views of executive directors and non-executive directors.

The Board and the Nomination and Remuneration Committee reviewed the performance of individual directors on the 
basis of criteria such as the contribution of the individual director to the board and committee meetings like preparedness 
on the issues to be discussed, meaningful and constructive contribution and inputs in meetings, etc. At the board meeting 
that followed the meeting of the independent directors and meeting of Nomination and Remuneration Committee, 
the performance of the Board, its Committees, and individual directors was also discussed. Performance evaluation of 
independent directors was done by the entire Board, excluding the independent director being evaluated.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 134(3)(p) of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, the Board 
has carried out an annual evaluation of its own performance and that of the directors individually as well as evaluation of 
the working of its Audit, Nomination and Remuneration and other Committees.

The Board has, on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, framed a Policy for selection 
and appointment of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other employees and their remuneration for implementation.

LISTING WITH STOCK EXCHANGES: 

The Company confirms that it has paid the Annual Listing Fees for the year 2023-2024 to BSE Limited and BSE Limited is the 
designated stock exchange where the shares of the company are listed.



16

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND SHAREHOLDERS INFORMATION:

The Company is committed to maintain the highest standards of corporate governance and adhere to the corporate 
governance requirements set out by SEBI.  The report on Corporate Governance as stipulated under the Act forms an 
integral part of this Report and is attached as ANNEXURE III.

SECRETARIAL STANDARDS: 

The Company complies with all applicable Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS

There are no other material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company which have occurred 
between theend of the financial year of the Company to which the financial statements relate and the date of the report 
other than those disclosed in the financial statements.

DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS OR TRIBUNALS 
Pursuant to Rule 8(5)(vii) of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, it is reported that during the year 2023-2024, no Orders were 
passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals impacting the going concern status and company’s operations in future.

GENERAL
1.	 During the year the Board has completed the process of buyback of 6,00,000 (Six Lakhs) fully paid up Equity Shares 

representing 10% of the fully paid-up Equity Share capital of the Company at a price of  Rs.28.00/-.

2.	 Your Directors state that there were no transactions in respect of the following items during the year under review 
requiring disclosure or reporting.

i.	 Issue of equity shares with differential rights as to dividend, voting or otherwise.

ii.	 Issue of shares (including sweat equity shares) to the employees of the Company under any scheme.

iii.	 Application made or proceeding pending under Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016.

iv.	 Difference between amount of valuation done at the time of one time settlement and valuation done while 
taking loan from the Banks or Financial Institutions.

The Company has put into effect economy measures consistently with the need to continue the operations on a moderate 
scale with efficiency and promptness.

WEBSITE:
Performance particulars of the company can be ascertained by the shareholders / public from website www.afslindia.in.

RISKS AND CONCERNS:
Your Company is exposed to normal finance risk factor such as Interest rate volatility, economic cycle and credit risk. Your 
Company manages these risks by adopting prudent business and risk management policies.

ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL CONTROL:
Your Company has got adequate system of internal controls and the management ensures adherence to all internal 
control practices and procedures. The Audit Committee critically reviews periodically the adequacy of internal controls and 
suggests control measures for further improvement / transparency.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL SYSTEM:
The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls commensurate with its size. During the year, such controls 
were tested and no reportable material weaknesses were observed.



17

DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN:
Your Directors further state that during the year under review, there was no cases filed pursuant to the Sexual Harassment 
of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT
Your Board takes this opportunity to thank the Company’s employees for their dedicated service and firm commitment to 
pursuing the goals and Vision of the Company. Your Board also wishes to express its appreciation for the continued support 
of the Government of India, Governments of various States in India, bankers, financial institutions, customers, dealers and 
suppliers and also, the valuable assistance and advice received from the shareholders. We look forward to the continued 
support of all the partners in our progress.

			   BY THE ORDER OF THE BOARD

		  (Sd/-)	 (Sd/-)

		  Muthulakshmi Ganesh	 Chitra Sivaramakrishnan 
Place	 :  Chennai	 Director	 Whole Time Director 
Date	 :  06/07/2024	 DIN:00286658	 DIN: 00292725
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REPORT ON MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS:
During the year the other income of your company stood at Rs. 183.13 Lakhs compared to Rs. 1984.23 Lakhs against the 
previous year.

WEBSITE:
Performance particulars of the company can be ascertained by the shareholders / public from website, www.afslindia.in. 

FUTURE PROSPECTS:
yy 	Increase of cash inflow by revising rental structures already in existence. 

yy 	To increase investment in trading portfolio depending upon the market conditions.

ECONOMY MEASURES: 
The Company has put into effect economy measures consistently with the need to continue the operations on a moderate 
scale with efficiency and promptness. 

RISKS AND CONCERNS: 
Your Company is exposed to normal financial risk factors such as Interest rate volatility, economic cycle and credit risk. Your 
Company manages these risks by adopting prudent business and risk management policies. 

ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL CONTROL: 
Your Company has got adequate system of internal controls and the management ensures adherence to all internal 
control practices and procedures. The Audit Committee critically reviews periodically the adequacy of internal controls and 
suggests control measures for further improvement / transparency.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL SYSTEM: 
The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls commensurate with its size. During the year, such controls 
were tested and no reportable material weaknesses were observed.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: 
The Directors wish to thank the Company’s Bankers for their continued support. The Directors also wish to thank the 
Company’s customers and stakeholders for their patronage. 

Your Directors place on record their appreciation of the good work done by the employees of the Company at all level.

		  BY THE ORDER OF THE BOARD

		  (Sd/-)	 (Sd/-) 
Place:	 Chennai	 Muthulakshmi Ganesh	 Chitra Sivaramakrishnan 
Date :	 06/07/2024	 Director 	 Whole Time Director 
		  DIN: 00286658	 DIN: 00292725
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Annexure I

Form No. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31/03/2024

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To 
The Members,

M/s. ABIRAMI FINANCIAL SERVICES (INDIA) LIMITED

I have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good 
corporate practices by M/s. ABIRAMI FINANCIAL SERVICES (INDIA) LIMITED [CIN: L65993TN1993PLC024861] (hereinafter 
called the Company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the 
corporate conducts/ statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of M/s. ABIRAMI FINANCIAL SERVICES (INDIA) LIMITED books, papers, minute books, forms and 
returns filed and other records maintained by the company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, 
agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, I hereby report that in my opinion, the 
company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31/03/2024 complied with the statutory 
provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance mechanism in place 
to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by M/s. ABIRAMI 
FINANCIAL SERVICES (INDIA) LIMITED for the financial year ended on 31/03/2024 according to the provisions of:

i.	 The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under;

ii.	 The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made there under;

iii.	 The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under;

iv.	 Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under to the extent of Foreign 
Direct Investment; 

v.	 The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 
(‘SEBI Act’):-

a)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 
2011; 

b)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015; 

c)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009; 

d)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 
1993;

e)	 The SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

vi.	 The Management has identified and confirmed the following Laws as specifically applicable to the Company.
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a)	 The Employees’ Provident Funds and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952

b)	 Employees’ State Insurance Act, 1948

c)	 Equal Remuneration Act, 1976

d)	 Shop & Establishment Act, 1948

e)	 The Minimum Wages Act, 1948

f )	 Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013

g)	 Payment of Wages Act, 1936

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(i)	 Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

(ii)	 Uniform Listing Agreement under SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, 
entered into by the Company with, Stock Exchange(s).

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, 
Standards, etc. mentioned above subject to the following observations: 

1. 	 The Company has not transferred the unclaimed dividend amount pertaining to the financial year 2015-16 to the 
Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) within the due date.

I further report that

•	 The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-
Executive Directors and Independent Directors, including One Woman Director. The changes in the composition 
of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with 
the provisions of the Act.

•	 Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda 
were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and 
clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size and operations 
of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

I further report that during the audit period there were no specific events/ actions in pursuance of the above referred laws, 
rules, regulation, guidelines, etc, having a major bearing on the companies affairs.

Place :	Chennai	 Signature	 :	 Sd/- 
Date : 	27/05/2024	 Name    	 :	 Sindhuja Porselvam 
				    Company Secretary in Practice 
		  Membership No.	 :	 44831	  
		  C P No.	 : 	 23622 
		  UDIN	 :	 A044831F000460708
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ANNEXURE TO SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

To

The Members 
M/s. ABIRAMI FINANCIAL SERVICES (INDIA) LIMITED 
Chennai.

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1.	 Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company. Our responsibility is to 
express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2.	 We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about 
the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that 
correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a 
reasonable basis for our opinion.

3.	 We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the company.

4.	 Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and 
regulations and happening of events etc.

5.	 The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the 
responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

6.	 The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the efficacy or 
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company.

Place : Chennai	 Signature	 :	 Sd/- 
Date :  27/05/2024	 Name    	 :	 Sindhuja Porselvam 
				    Company Secretary in Practice 
		  Membership No.	 :	 44831	  
		  C P No.	 : 	 23622 
		  UDIN	 :	 A044831F000460708
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CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS

(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI 
(ListingObligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015)

To

The Members of 

M/s. Abirami Financial Services (India) Limited.

I have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors of  
M/s. Abirami Financial Services (India) Limited having CIN: L65993TN1993PLC024861 and having registered office at Old 
No. 11, New No. 2, Parthasarathy puram, 2nd Street, T.Nagar, Chennai-600017, (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Company’), 
produced before me  by the Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) 
read with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 10(i) of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the verifications (including Directors Identification 
Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations furnished to me by the 
Company & its officers, I hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below for the 
Financial Year ending on 31st March, 2024 have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as 
Directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs, or other Statutory 
Authority.

S.No. Name of the Director DIN Date of appointment

1 Mr. K V Aiyappan 00117641 19/04/1993

2 Mrs. Muthulakshmi Ganesh 00286658 31/03/2015

3 Mrs. Chitra Sivaramakrishnan 00292725 01/08/2022

4 Mr. M G Bhaskar 07527509 20/06/2016

5 Mr. Arunachalam Kanaga Sabesan 02238098 30/09/2021

6 Mrs. Revathi Sureshkumar 08507052 30/09/2021

Ensuring the eligibility for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the 
management of the Company. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on my verification. This certificate 
is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the 
management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Place : Chennai	 Signature	 :	 Sd/- 
Date :  27/05/2024	 Name    	 :	 Sindhuja Porselvam 
				    Company Secretary in Practice 
		  Membership No. 	 :	 44831 
		  C P No.	 : 	 23622 
		  UDIN	 :	 A044831F000460741
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Annexure II

Form No. AOC-2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties referred to 
in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length transactions under third proviso 
thereto

1. 	 Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis:

S.No Particulars Details

1. Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship

There were no transactions or 
arrangements which are not at arm’s 

length and which were not in the 
ordinary course of business during 

financial year 2023-24.

2. Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions

3. Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transactions

4. Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions 
including the value, if any

5. Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements 
or transactions

6. Date(s) of approval by the Board

7. Amount paid as advances, if any

8. Date on which the special resolution was passed in general 
meeting as required under first proviso to section 188

2. 	 Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis:

S.No Particulars Details

1. Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship Mr. K.V. Aiyappan, Director

2. Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions Rent Payable

3. Duration of the transactions FY 2023-2024

4. Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions 
including the value, if any

Rs. 3.01 Lakhs

5. Date(s) of approval by the Board 01/05/2023

6. Amount paid as advances, if any NIL

		  BY THE ORDER OF THE BOARD

		  (Sd/-)	 (Sd/-) 
Place:	 Chennai	 Muthulakshmi Ganesh	 Chitra Sivaramakrishnan 
Date :	 06/07/2024	 Director 	 Whole Time Director 
		  DIN: 00286658	 DIN: 00292725
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ANNEXURE III

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Company’s philosophy on code of governance:

Corporate Governance at M/s. Abirami Financial Services (India) Limited is integral to its existence. The Company believes 
that good Corporate Governance is a commitment to run the businesses in a legal, ethical and a transparent manner, 
a dedication that must emanate from the top and permeate throughout the organisation. The Company is committed 
to good Corporate Governance, based on an effective independent Board, separation of supervisory role from the 
executive management and constitution of Committees to oversee critical areas a transparent disclosure policy to keep 
the stakeholders informed, thus, upholding the standards practically at every sphere. The Company is in compliance with 
the requirements of the Corporate Governance under the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”).

The Company recognises the rights of all the stakeholders and encourages co-operation between the Company and the 
stakeholders to enable your participation in the corporate governance process.

The Company ensures adequate, timely and accurate disclosure of all material matters including the financial situation, 
performance, ownership and governance to the stock exchanges and the investors. Information is prepared and disclosed 
in accordance with the prescribed standards and is disseminated in an equal, timely and cost efficient manner for access 
by users.

The company strives hard to achieve establishment of Internal Controls and risk Management. The Company respects the 
right of its shareholders to information on the performance of the company.

Board of Directors:

I.	 The Members of the Board of Directors are persons with considerable expertise and experience in audit, accounts, 
administration, banking, software, finance and international business. The company is benefited by the experience 
and skills of the Board of Directors.

II.	 As on March 31, 2024, the Board comprised of six Directors. Of the six directors two are Non-Executive Directors, 
three are Independent Directors including a Woman Director and One Executive Director. The composition of the 
Board is in conformity with Regulation 17 of the SEBI Listing Regulations and Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 
(“Act”), read with the relevant rules made there under.

III.	 The number of Directorships, Committee memberships/ chairmanships of all Directors is within the respective 
limits prescribed under the Act and SEBI Listing Regulations. Necessary disclosures regarding Board and Committee 
positions in other companies as on March 31, 2024 have been made by all the Directors of the Company.

IV.	 The Company has received declarations from all its Independent Directors confirming that they meet the criteria of 
independence prescribed both under the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI Listing Regulations. In the opinion of 
the Board, the Independent Directors of the Company fulfil the conditions specified in SEBI Listing Regulations and 
are independent of the Management.

V.	 Every Independent Director, at the first meeting of the Board in which he/she participates as a Director and thereafter 
at the first meeting of the Board in every financial year, gives declarations under Section 149(7) of the Act and 
Regulation 16(1)(b) of the SEBI Listing Regulations that he/she meets the criteria of independence as stated in these 
provisions/clauses.
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VI.	 The Independent Directors have included their names in the databank of Independent Directors maintained with the 
Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs in terms of Section 150 of the Act read with Rule 6 of the Companies (Appointment 
& Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014.

VII.	 The Company has a code of conduct for Directors and Senior Management personnel. The code is available on the 
official website of the company www.afslindia.in. All Directors and Senior Management Personnel have affirmed 
compliance with the code of conduct approved and adopted by the Board of Directors. 

VIII.	 The names and categories of the Directors on the Board, their attendance at Board meetings held during the year and 
the number of directorships and Committee chairmanships/memberships held by them in other public companies 
as on March 31, 2024 is given herein below. Chairmanships/memberships of Board committees includes only Audit 
Committee and Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee as per Regulation 26(1)(b) of the SEBI Listing Regulations.

Names of Director Category

Number of Board 
meetings during the 

year 2022-23 Attendance at 
last AGM held 
on September 

11, 2023

Number of 
directorships in other 

public companies Number of 
directorships 

in other 
companies

Number of committee 
positions held in other 

public companies

No. of 
Meetings 
entitle to 

attend

No. of 
Meetigs 

Attended
Director Chairman Member Chairman

Mr. K. V. Aiyappan Promoter, Non-
Independent, 
Non-Executive

7 6 Yes 1 0 4 0 0

Mrs. Muthulaskhmi 
Ganesh

Non-
Independent, 
Non-Executive

7 6 Yes 1 0 4 0 0

Mrs. Chitra 
Sivaramakrishnan

Executive 7 7 Yes 0 0 0 0 0

Mr. M. G. Bhaskar Independent, 
Non-Executive

7 7 Yes 0 0 0 0 0

Mrs. Revathi  
Suresh Kumar

Independent, 
Non-Executive

7 7 Yes 0 0 0 0 0

Mr. Arunachalam 
Kanaga Sabesan

Independent, 
Non-Executive

9 6 Yes 0 0 0 0 0

IX.	 None of the Directors on the Board is a member of more than ten Committees or Chairman of more than five 
committees across the public companies in which he/she is a director.

X.	 None of the Independent Directors on the Board serve as Independent Directors in more than seven listed entities. 
None of the Executive Directors on the Board serve as an Independent Director in more than three listed entities.

XI.	 The Board evaluates the Company’s strategic direction, management policies, performance objectives and 
effectiveness of Corporate Governance practices.

XII.	 In compliance with the applicable provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, the Company facilitates the 
participation of the Directors in Board/Committee meetings through video conferencing or other audio-visual mode.

XIII.	 Your Company has appointed Independent Directors who are renowned people having expertise/experience in their 
respective field/profession. None of the Independent Directors are promoters or related to promoters. They do not 
have pecuniary relationship with the Company and further do not hold two percent or more of the voting power of 
the Company.

XIV.	 During the year, the Independent Directors of the Company without the presence of non-independent directors and 
management team met on May1, 2023. The Independent Directors inter-alia reviewed the performance of the non-
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independent directors, Board as a whole and Chairman of the Company, on parameters of effectiveness and to assess 
the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the management and the Board.

XV.	 The details of familiarisation programme done for the financial year 2023-24 have been hosted in the website of the 
Company www.afslindia.in.

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

1.	 AUDIT COMMITTEE:

	 Your Company has constituted a qualified independent Audit Committee which acts as a link between the 
management, external and internal auditors and the Board of Directors of the Company. The Committee is responsible 
for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process by providing direction to audit function and monitoring 
the scope and quality of internal and statutory audits. The Members of the Audit Committee are financially literate 
and possess accounting or related financial management expertise. The Executive Director and the Statutory Auditor 
are invitees to the committee meetings. 

	 Besides, the Audit Committee reviews related party transactions, quarterly, annual financial results, performance 
of statutory auditors, appointment/re-appointment of statutory auditors and fixation of audit fees, management 
discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations, observation of management / external 
auditors on weaknesses of internal control systems of the company and follow up reports of management.

	 The Audit Committee also considers matters which are specifically referred to it by the Board of Directors, besides 
considering the mandatory requirements of Regulation 18 read with Part C of Schedule II of SEBI Listing Regulations 
and provisions of Section 177 of the Act.

	 As on 31st March 2024, the Audit Committee comprised of three Non-Executive Independent Directors. During the 
year the committee met Four times on 01/05/2023,14/08/2023, 11/11/2023, 06/02/2024. The Audit Committee was 
constituted as tabled below:

	                    Name of the Director	 Category	 No. of Meetings Attended

             Mr. Arunachalam Kanaga Sabesan 	 Chairman	 4 
             Mrs. Revathi SureshKumar	 Member 	 4 
             Mr. M. G. Bhaskar	 Member	 4

	 The Committee complies with the SEBI Listing Regulations relating to composition, independence of its members, 
financial expertise and the audit committee charter.

2.	 NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE:

	 Your Company has a Nomination and Remuneration Committee (“NRC”) constituted pursuant to the provisions of 
Section 178 of the Act and Regulation 19 of the SEBI Listing Regulations.

	 As on 31st March 2024, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee comprised of three Non-Executive Directors. 
During the year the committee met Two times on 01/05/2023 and 06/02/2024. The Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee was constituted as tabled below:

	                    Name of the Director	 Category	 No. of Meetings Attended

             Mr. Arunachalam Kanaga Sabesan 	 Chairman	 2 
             Mrs. Revathi SureshKumar	 Member 	 2 
             Mrs. Muthulakshmi Ganesh	 Member	 2

During the year, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee/Board conducted an evaluation of its own performance, 
individual Directors as well as the working of the Committees as per the Board evaluation framework adopted by it.



27

The Remuneration Committee has the mandate to review and recommend remuneration payable to the Whole Time 
Director / Executive Director based on their performance.

Remuneration of directors:
The Non-Executive Directors of the company were paid sitting fee for attending each Board meeting and no fees is paid for 
committee meetings.

Apart from sitting fees no remuneration / commission is paid to Non-Executive Directors.

The details of sitting fees paid and numbers of shares held by non-executive directors are as follows:

NAME OF THE DIRECTOR SITTING FEES 
(Amount in Rs.)

SALARY 
(Amount in Rs.)

TOTAL 
(Amount in Rs.)

NO.OF.  
SHARES HELD

Mr. K. V. Aiyappan 45,000 0 45,000 24,65,000

Mrs Muthulakshmi Ganesh 45,000 0 45,000 100

Mr. M. G. Bhaskar 60,000 0 60,000 Nil

Mr. Arunachalam Kanaga Sabesan 60,000 0 60,000 Nil

Mrs. Revathi Sureshkumar 60,000 0 60,000 Nil

Mrs. Chitra Sivaramakrishnan  
(Executive Director)

0 4,50,000 4,50,000 Nil

There were no pecuniary relationships or transactions of the non-executive director’s vis-a-vis the company. The company 
has not granted any stock option to any of its directors.

3.	 STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE:

	 Your Company has constituted a Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee (“SRC”) pursuant to the provisions of Section 
178 of the Act and Regulation 20 of the SEBI Listing Regulations.

	 The Committee oversees the performance of the Registrars and Share transfer Agents of the company. The Committee 
is empowered to approve and monitor transfers, transmission, split and consolidation of shares of the company, issue 
of duplicate share certificates, attends to investor grievances etc, and reviews compliance with various statutory and 
regulatory requirements pertaining to transfer of securities of the company. The Committee considers and resolves 
the grievances of the securityholders, reviews the measures taken to ensure timely receipt ofdividends/annual 
reports etc. and effective exercise of voting rights byshareholders.

	 As on 31st March 2024, The Stakeholders Relationship Committee comprised of Three Non-Executive Directors. 
During the year the committee met Two times on 01/05/2023 and 06/02/2024. The Stakeholders Relationship 
Committee was constituted as tabled below:

	                    Name of the Director	 Category	 No. of Meetings Attended

             Mrs. Muthulakshmi Ganesh 	 Chairman	 2 
             Mr. Arunachalam Kanaga Sabesan 	 Member 	 2 
             Mr. M. G. Bhaskar	 Member	 2

4.	 RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

	 Your Company has constituted a Risk Management Committee (“RMC”) to assist the Board and the Audit Committee 
in their responsibilities of overseeing Company’s risk management policies and processes (including processes for 
monitoring and mitigating such risks) and the Company’s exposure to unmitigated risks.

	 As on 31st March 2024, The Risk Management Committee comprised of Three Non-Executive Directors. During the 
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year the committee met Two times on 01/05/2023 and 06/02/2024. Hence the Risk Management Committee was 
constituted as tabled below:

	                    Name of the Director	 Category	 No. of Meetings Attended

             Mrs. Muthulakshmi Ganesh 	 Chairman	 2 
             Mr. Arunachalam Kanaga Sabesan 	 Member 	 2 
             Mr. M. G. Bhaskar	 Member	 2

General Body Meetings:

A.	 The last three Annual General Meetings of the Company were held as under:

YEAR DATE & TIME LOCATION SPECIAL RESOLUTION PASSED

2020-2021 30/09/2021

03.30 P.M

Video Conferencing (“VC”)/
Other Audio Visual Means 
(“OAVM)

1.        To re-appoint Dr. M.G. Bhaskar (DIN: 
07527509) as an Independent Director.

2.        To appoint Mr. Arunachalam Kanaga 
Sabesan (DIN: 02238098), as an Independent 
Director.

2021-2022 15/09/2022

03.00 P.M

Video Conferencing (“VC”)/
Other Audio Visual Means 
(“OAVM”)

1.        To appoint of Mrs. Chitra Sivaramakrishnan 
as Whole-Time Director.

2.        To amend the Object Clause of The 
Memorandum of Association.

3.        To amend the Liability Clause of the 
Memorandum of Association

4.        To amend the Capital Clause of the 
Memorandum of Association

5.        To adopt new set of Articles of Association.

2022-2023 11/09/2023

03.00 P.M

Video Conferencing (“VC”)/
Other Audio Visual Means 
(“OAVM”)

No Special Resolution was passed.

B.	 No Extra-Ordinary General Meeting/Postal Ballot was held during the year 2023-24.

	 DISCLOSURES:
1)	 During the FY 2023-24, there were no materially significant transactions with the related parties, which were 

in conflict with the interests of the Company and that require an approval of the Company in terms of the SEBI 
Listing Regulations. The transactions entered into with the related parties during the financial year were in the 
ordinary course of business and at arm’s length basis and were approved by the Audit Committee. There were 
no material related party transactions as per SEBI Listing Regulations during the year.

2)	 Details of non-compliance by the Company, penalties and strictures imposed on the Company by Stock 
Exchange or SEBI or any statutory authority, on any matter related to capital markets, during the last three 
years: 

•	 During the Financial year 2020-2021 the Company had paid penalty for non-compliance of the provisions 
of Section 203(1)(ii) of Companies Act 2013 and Regulation 6 of SEBI Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirement (LODR) Regulations, 2015 with respect to appointment of Company Secretary.
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•	 During the Financial year 2021-2022 the company paid penalty, imposed by SEBI for late submissions of 
disclosures required under various Regulationsof SEBI Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirement (LODR) 
Regulations 2015.

•	 During the Financial year 2022-2023 the Company paid penalty for late disclosure of Regulation 29(2)/29(3)
of SEBI Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirement (LODR) Regulations 2015.

3)	 Your Company has complied with all applicable mandatory requirements in terms of SEBI Listing Regulations. 
A report on the compliances on the applicable laws for the Company is placed before the Board on a quarterly 
basis for its review.	

4)	 During the year under review, there were no complaints received, pursuant to the provisions of the Sexual 
Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.

5)	 The Auditors’ Report on statutory financial statements of the Company containing the Audit opinion is 
unmodified.

6)	 The Internal Auditors of the Company make presentations to the Audit Committee on their reports on a regular 
basis.

7)	 Your Company has engaged a qualified Practising Company Secretary to carry out share capital audit to 
reconcile the total admitted equity share capital with the National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and 
the Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) and the total issued and listed equity share capital of 
the Company. The audit report confirms that the total issued/paid-up capital is in agreement with the total 
number of shares in physical form and the total number of dematerialised shares held with NSDL and CDSL.

8)	 During the year, there has been no instance where the Board did notaccept the recommendation of its 
Committees.

9)	 Your Company complies with the following Non-mandatory requirements: 

a)	 The company has set up an office for the Non-executive chairman to look after the affairs of the company.

b)	 The Company has setup a Remuneration Committee comprising of three Non-Executive Independent 
Directors. 

c)	 The other Non-mandatory requirements will be adopted as and when necessary.

MEANS OF COMMUNICATION:

1.	 The quarterly, half yearly and annual results are normally published in Trinity Mirror (English newspaper) and in 
Makkal Kural (Tamil newspaper). Apart from the above, the company had also sent the results and shareholding 
pattern to the Stock Exchanges where the Company‘s shares are Listed and are also displayed on the Company’s 
website www.afslindia.in.

2.	 Mrs.Chitra Sivaramakrishnan is the Whole time Director of the Company. She can be contacted for Investor related 
matters relating to the company. Her contact number is (044) 49530954 and E-mail Id: abicompliance@afslindia.in.

GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION:

1.	 The Company is registered in the State of Tamil Nadu. The Corporate Identity Number is L65993TN1993PLC024861.
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2.	 31st Annual General Meeting for FY 2023-24

	 Date			   :	 Friday, 23rd August 2024.

	 Time			   :	 03.00 P.M

	 Venue			   :	 Video Conferencing or other Audio Visual means.

3. 	 Financial year 		  :	 01st April, 2023  to 31st March, 2024

4. 	 Book Closure Date		  :	 Saturday, 17th day of August, 2024 to Friday 23rd day of August, 2024  
					     (Both days inclusive)

5. 	 Listing of Equity Shares	 :	 BSE Limited (“BSE”), Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, Dalal Street, Mumbai- 400001

6. 	 Annual Listing Fee		  :	 Annual listing fee for the financial year 2023-24 has been paid to the Stock  
					     Exchange.

7. 	 Depository Fee		  :	 Annual custody fee for the financial year 2023-24 has been paid to the 
					     Depositories.

8. 	 Scrip code			   :	 511756

9. 	 NSE Symbol		  :	 ABIRAFN

10. 	 ISIN			   :	 INE195101013

11. 	 Share Price Performance	 :	 High, Low (based on daily closing prices) during each month in the FY 2023- 
					     2024 on BSE

Month High Low

Apr-23 23.17 18.2

May-23 32.5 20.64

Jun-23 37.05 28.27

Jul-23 36.3 25.65

Aug-23 30 21.19

Sep-23 27.12 20.54

Oct-23 32.57 24.6

Nov-23 34.66 30.74

Dec-23 38.7 29.02

Jan-24 36.51 29.9

Feb-24 44.06 35.48

Mar-24 42.56 34.78
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12.	 Registrars and Transfer Agents 	 :	 Cameo Corporate Services Limited, Subramanian Building, 
						      No.1, Club House Road, Chennai 600 002. 
						      Tel: +91 44 2846 0390    Fax: +91 44 2846 0129 
						      Website: www.cameoindia.com 
						      SEBI Registration INR 000003753

13.	 Share Transfer system	 :	 In terms of the SEBI (Listing Obligations &Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015, securities of listed Companies can only be 
transferred in dematerialized form with effect from April 1, 2019, 
except in case of request received for transmission or transposition of 
securities and in view of this, the members holding shares in physical 
form are requested to dematerialize their holdings immediately. In 
case of shares in electronic form, the transfers are processed by NSDL/ 
CDSL through the respective Depository Participants.

14.  	 Share holding pattern and Distribution of Shareholding as on 31 March, 2024.

Particulars No. of Shares Held Percentage

Promoter Holdings: 

    Non Resident Indian 24,65,000 45.65%

     Foreign Individual 10,80,000 20.00%

Non-Promoter Holdings:

     Private Corporate Bodies 4,57,885 8.48%

    NRIs 7,25,063 13.43%

    Indian Public and others 6,72,052 12.45%

Total 54,00,000 100%

Category Total No. of 
Shareholders % of Shareholders Shares % to capital

1-5000 1375 91.3621 91215 1.6892

5001-10000 48 3.1893 37312 0.6910

10001-20000 35 2.3255 51407 0.9520

20001-30000 13 0.8637 32084 0.5941

30001-40000 6 0.3986 21701 0.4019

40001-50000 3 0.1993 14200 0.2630

50001-100000 5 0.3322 37603 0.6964

100001 - And above 20 1.3289 5114478 94.7126

Total 1505 100 5400000 100.0000

15.	 Dematerialisation of Shares	 : 	 52,83,567 Equity shares (i.e.) 97.84% of Company’s paid up Capital has been 
Dematerialized up to 31-03-2024. Balance 1,16,433 shares (i.e.) 2.17% are 
in physical form. Members are requested to note that in line with the SEBI 
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circular dated January 25, 2022, issuance of shares in case of transmission 
and requests for duplicate share certificates canonly be undertaken in 
dematerialised mode.

			   Members holding shares in physical mode are requested to furnish their 
KYC details viz., PAN, Nomination, postal address, Mobile No., E-mail 
address, bank details, Specimen signature etc. immediately.

16. 	 Your company does not have any GDRS/ADRS/Warrants or any other convertible instruments.

17.	 Investor Correspondence 	  :	 Investors clarifications/queries regarding transfer Transmission and any 
query relating to shares of the company in physical form can be sent to 
RTA M/s.Cameo Corporate Services Limited for shares in Demat form, the 
details can be obtained from Investors Depository Participants and/or  
M/s.Cameo Corporate Services Limited.

18.	 Any query on Annual Report	 :	 Mrs. Muthulakshmi Ganesh  
Director 
E-mail Id: abicompliance@afslindia.in
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ANNEXURE TO BOARD’S REPORT

DECLARATION FOR COMPLIANCE ON THE CODE OF CONDUCT

To The Members of ABIRAMI FINANCIAL SERVICES (INDIA) LIMITED

I hereby declare that all the Board Members and senior management personnel are aware of the provisions of the Code 
of Conduct laid down by the Board. All the Board Members and senior management personnel have affirmed compliance 
with the Code of Conduct.

		  BY ORDER OF THE BOARD 

		  (Sd/-)
		  Chitra Sivaramakrishnan 
Place  :  Chennai	 Whole Time Director 
Date   :  06/07/2024	 DIN: 00292725
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CERTIFICATION BY CFO

To the Board of Directors of ABIRAMI FINANCIAL SERVICES (INDIA) LIMITED 

I, D.Parthiban, Chief Financial Officer of ABIRAMI FINANCIAL SERVICES (INDIA) LIMITED, certify that:

1.	 We have reviewed the financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year and that to the best of our 
knowledge and belief:
a.	 these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements 

that might be misleading;

b.	 these statements together present a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company and are in 
compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

2.	 There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the company during the year 
which are fraudulent, illegal or volatile of the company’s code of conduct.

3.	 We accept overall responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal control for financial reporting. This is 
monitored by the internal audit function, which encompasses the examination and evaluation of the adequacy and 
effectiveness, of internal control. The internal auditor works with all levels of management and statutory auditors and 
reports significant issues to the audit committee of the Board. The auditors and audit committee are appraised of any 
corrective action taken with regard to significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls.

4.	 We indicate to the auditors and to the audit committee:
a.	 That there is no Significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year;

b.	 That there is no Significant changes in accounting policies during the year;	

c.	 That there is no Instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware

 

		  BY THE ORDER OF THE BOARD

											                         Sd/- 

Place	 :   Chennai	 D.Parthiban

Date	 :   06/07/2024	 Chief Financial Officer 
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CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

TO

THE MEMBERS OF ABIRAMI FINANCIAL SERVICES (INDIA) LIMITED

We have examined the compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance by Tata Consultancy Services Limited(‘the 
Company’) for the year ended on March 31, 2024, asstipulated under Regulations 17 to 27, clauses (b) to (i) and(t) of sub-
regulation (2) of Regulation 46 and para C, D & E ofSchedule V of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015(“SEBI Listing Regulations”).

The compliance of conditions of corporate governance is the responsibility of the management. Our examination was 
limited to procedure and implementation thereof, adopted by the company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions 
of corporate governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, we certify that the company 
has complied in general with the conditions of corporate governance as stipulated in the above mentioned SEBI (LODR) 
Regulations, 2015.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the further viability of the company nor the efficiency 
or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company.

Yours sincerely

For TSG & ASSOCIATES 

Chartered Accountants

Sd/-  
T.S. GOBINATHAN 
Partner 
Membership No. 025094

Place    :  Chennai 
Date     :  06/07/2024 
UDIN    : 	24025094BKEWKW2101 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To,

The Members of, 
Abirami Financial Services (India) Limited 
Old No.11, New No.2, 
Parthasarathypuram, 2nd street, 
T. Nagar, Chennai – 600 017.

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of ABIRAMI FINANCIAL SERVICES (INDIA) LIMITED (the 
“Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other 
Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on that 
date and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as the 
“standalone financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid standalone 
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) in the manner so required and 
give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read 
with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles 
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024 and its profit, total comprehensive 
income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (“SA”s) 
specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the 
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”) together 
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements under the provisions 
of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 
requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate 
to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the 
Standalone Financial Statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the 
Standalone Financial Statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion 
on these matters. 

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information 
included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s Report, Business 
Responsibility and Sustainability Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder’s Information, but does not include the 
consolidated financial statements, standalone financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.
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Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form 
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, 
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or 
our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we 
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the 
preparation of these Standalone Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial 
performance, including other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance 
with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance 
of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company 
and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting 
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance 
of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a true 
and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Standalone Financial Statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to 
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern 
basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no 
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Company’s Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s Financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone Financial Statements as a whole are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs 
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users 
taken on the basis of these Standalone Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism 
throughout the audit. We also:

yy Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud 
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from 
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

yy Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion 
on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements in 
place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.
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yy Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related 
disclosures made by the management.

yy Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the 
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant 
doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are 
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the Standalone Financial Statements or, 
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained 
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to 
continue as a going concern.

yy Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Standalone Financial Statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the Standalone Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a 
manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, 
makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the standalone financial statements 
may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) Planning the scope of our audit work 
and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the standalone 
financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of 
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our 
audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements 
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be 
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most 
significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit 
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the 
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report 
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of 
such communication

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.	 As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

	 We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief 
were necessary for the purposes of our audit.
a)	 In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears 

from our examination of those books.

b)	 The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, Statement of 
Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books 
of account.

c)	 In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section 
133 of the Act.

d)	 On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2024 taken on record 
by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2024 from being appointed as a 
director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.
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e)	 With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements 
of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure A”. 
Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s 
internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements.

f )	 With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the requirements 
of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

	 In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the  
remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of 
section 197 of the Act.

h)	 With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information 
and according to the explanations given to us:

i.	 There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education 
and Protection Fund by the Company. Except for the FY 2015-16.

ii.	 (a)	 The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which 
are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested 
(either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the 
Company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries”), with the 
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, 
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever 
by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the 
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) 	 The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which 
are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the Company from 
any person or entity, including foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether 
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or 
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the 
Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of 
the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(c)	 Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in 
the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the  
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, 
contain any material misstatement.

iii.	 As stated in Note 7 (ix) to the standalone financial statements

(a)	 The final dividend proposed in the previous year, declared and paid by the Company during the 
year is in accordance with Section 123 of the Act, as applicable.

(b)	 The Board of Directors of the Company have proposed final dividend for the year which is subject 
to the approval of the members at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. The amount of dividend 
proposed is in accordance with section 123 of the Act, as applicable.

iv.	 Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for maintaining books of account using 
accounting software which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility is applicable to the 
Company with effect from April 1, 2024, and accordingly, reporting under Rule 11(g) of Companies 
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 is not applicable for the financial year ended March 31, 2024.
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2.	 As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (the “Order”) issued by the Central Government in  
terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure B” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 
4 of the Order
.

			   For TSG & ASSOCIATES, 
			   CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 
			   Firm Reg. No. 013133S

(Sd/-) 
Place: 	 Chennai	          T.S.GOBINATHAN 
Date: 	 24/05/2024 		  PARTNER 
      		  Membership No.025094 

UDIN 24025094BKEWKQ2297
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“ANNEXURE A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1 (6) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our 
report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Standalone Financials Statements under Clause (i) of 
sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements of ABIRAMI FINANCIALS 
(INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED (the “Company”) as of March 31, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial 
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls
The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls with reference to 
Standalone Financial Statements based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company 
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls 
Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the “ICAI”). These responsibilities include 
the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for 
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of 
its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and 
the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to Standalone 
Financial Statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit 
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the ICAI and the Standards on 
Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with 
reference to standalone financial statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial 
controls with reference to standalone financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated 
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls 
with reference to Standalone Financial Statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls 
with reference to Standalone Financial Statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with 
reference to standalone financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating 
the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend 
on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion 
on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to standalone financial statements

A company’s internal financial control with reference to standalone financial statements is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external 
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control with reference 
to Standalone Financial Statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records 
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) 
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in 
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accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being 
made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable 
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets 
that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of 
collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not 
be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial 
statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to Standalone Financial 
Statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies 
or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company has, in all 
material respects, an adequate internal financial controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements and such 
internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 
2024, based on the criteria for internal financial control with reference to standalone financial statements established by 
the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the ICAI.

For TSG & ASSOCIATES, 
			   CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 
			   Firm Reg. No. 013133S

(Sd/-) 
Place: 	 Chennai	          T.S.GOBINATHAN 
Date: 	 24/05/2024 		  PARTNER 
      		  Membership No.025094 

UDIN 24025094BKEWKQ2297
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“ANNEXURE B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report to the 
Members of Abirami Financial Services (India) Limited of even date)

To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the Company and the books of account 
and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state that:

i.	 In respect of the Company’s property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible assets:

(a) 	 (A) 	 The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative 
details and situation of property, plant and equipment and relevant details of right-of-use assets.

(B) 	 The company is not having any intangible assets; hence this clause is not applicable;

(b)	 The Company has a program of physical verification of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use 
assets so to cover all the assets once every three years which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard 
to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the program, certain property, plant 
and equipment and right-of-use assets were due for verification during the year and were physically 
verified by the Management during the year. According to the information and explanations given to us, 
no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c)	 According to the information and explanation given to us, there are no the title deeds of the immovable 
properties are not held in the name of the company: hence this clause is not applicable.

(d)	 The Company has not revalued any of its property, plant and equipment (including right-of-use assets) 
and intangible assets during the year.

(e)	 No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the Company as at March 
31, 2024 for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as 
amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder.

ii.        (a)	 The Company does not have any inventory and hence reporting under clause 3(ii)(a) of the Order is not 
applicable. 

(b) 	 The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of ₹ 5 crore, in aggregate, at any 
points of time during the year, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current 
assets and hence reporting under clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

iii.	 The Company has not made investments in, Companies and granted unsecured loans to other parties, during 
the year. The Company has not made investments in Firms and Limited Liability Partnerships during the year. 
Further the Company has not provided any guarantee or security or granted any advances in the nature of 
loans, secured or unsecured, to Companies, Firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties.

iv.	 The Company has complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect 
of loans granted, investments made and guarantees and securities provided, as applicable.

v. 	 The Company has not accepted any deposit or amounts which are deemed to be deposits. Hence, reporting 
under clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable. 

vi. 	 The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government under sub-section (1) of 
section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 for the business activities carried out by the Company. Hence, reporting 
under clause (vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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vii.	 In respect of statutory dues:

(a) 	 In our opinion, the Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, 
including Goods and Services tax, Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, 
Service Tax, duty of Custom, duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess and other material statutory dues 
applicable to it with the appropriate authorities.

	 There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service tax, Provident Fund, 
Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, duty of Custom, duty of Excise, Value 
Added Tax, Cess and other material statutory dues in arrears as at March 31, 2024 for a period of more 
than six months from the date they became payable.

viii.	 There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been surrendered or disclosed 
as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961). 

	 Except for Rs.9,44,381 Interest income of FY 22-23 not accrued during that year. It is accrued during the  
FY 23-24 and is being recorded as income during the Current Financial Year.

ix.	 (a) 	 The Company has not taken any loans or other borrowings from any lender. Hence reporting under 
clause 3(ix)(a) of the Order is not applicable. 

(b) 	 The Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government 
or any government authority. 

(c) 	 The Company has not taken any term loan during the year and there are no outstanding term loans at 
the beginning of the year and hence, reporting under clause 3(ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable. 

(d) 	 On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised on short-term basis 
have, prima facie, not been used during the year for long-term purposes by the Company. 

(e) 	 On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company has not taken any 
funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries. 

(f ) 	 The Company has not raised any loans during the year and hence reporting on clause 3(ix)(f ) of the 
Order is not applicable

x.	 (a)	 The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt          
instruments)during the year and hence reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable. 

(b) 	 During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares 
or convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and hence reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the 
Order is not applicable.

xi.	  (a)	 No fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during 
the year. 

(b)	 No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as   
prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, 
during the year and upto the date of this report. 

(c)	 We have taken into consideration the whistle blower complaints received by the Company during the 
year (and upto the date of this report), while determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit 
procedures.
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xii.	 The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of the Order is not applicable.

xiii. 	 In our opinion, the Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 with 
respect   to applicable transactions with the related parties and the details of related party transactions have 
been disclosed in the standalone financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

xiv. 	 (a)	 In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with the size and the    
nature of its business. 

		 (b)	 We have considered, the internal audit reports for the year under audit, issued to the Company during 
the   year and till date, in determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures.

xv.	 In our opinion during the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its Directors 
or persons connected with its directors and hence provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not 
applicable to the Company.

xvi.	 (a)	 In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of 
India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a), (b) and (c) of the Order is not applicable. 

		 (b)	 In our opinion, there is no core investment company within the Group (as defined in the Core Investment 
Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) and accordingly reporting under clause 3(xvi)(d) of the 
Order is not applicable.

xvii.	 The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit and the immediately 
preceding financial year.

xviii.	 There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year.

xix.	 On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment 
of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements and our knowledge of the 
Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the 
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty 
exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing 
at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. 
We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that 
our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor 
any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get 
discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

.

			   For TSG & ASSOCIATES, 
			   CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 
			   Firm Reg. No. 013133S

(Sd/-) 
Place: Chennai	          T.S.GOBINATHAN 
Date: 24/05/2024 	 PARTNER 
      		  Membership No.025094

UDIN 24025094BKEWKQ2297
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ABIRAMI FINANCIAL SERVICES (INDIA) LIMITED 
BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st MARCH 2023

PARTICULARS	 NOTE	 For FY ended	 For FY ended	 For FY ended 
			   NO	 31/03/2024  	 31/03/2023	   31/03/2022

I 	 ASSETS				  
	 Non-current assets				  
	 (a) 	 Property, Plant and Equipment	 1	  73,088 	  152,584 	  20,838,981 
	 (b) 	 Financial Assets				  
	 Investments	 2	  8,933,949 	  6,496,590 	  4,122,698 
	 Trade Receivables		   –   	  –   	  –   
	 Loans		   –   	  –   	  –   
	 Others	 3	  169,028 	  1,110,322 	  1,076,222 
	 (c) 	 Other Non-Current Assets		   –   	  –   	  –   
			    	 9,176,065 	  7,759,496 	  26,037,901 
	 Current Assets				  
	 Trade Receivables	 4	  –   	  –   	  –   
	 Cash and Cash Equivalents	 5	  188,702,284 	  210,031,401 	  49,498,538 
	 Bank Balances other than above		   –   	  –   	  –   
	 (c)	 Current Tax Assets (Net)		   –   	  –   	  –   
	 (d)	 Other Current Assets	 6	  12,769,337 	  46,202,791 	  2,627,664 

			    	 201,471,621 	  256,234,192 	  52,126,202 

	 Total Assets		   210,647,686 	  263,993,688 	  78,164,103 

II	 EQUITY AND LIABILITIES				  
	 Equity				  
	 (a)	 Equity Share Capital	 7	  54,000,000 	  60,000,000 	  60,000,000 
	 (b)	 Other Equity	 8	  152,111,531 	  163,380,155 	  17,426,810 

	 Total of Equity		   206,111,531 	  223,380,155 	  77,426,810 

	 Liabilities				  

	 Non-current liabilities				  
	 (a)	 Provisions		   –   	  –   	  –   
	 (b)	 Deferred tax liabilities (net)		   –   	  –   	  –   
	 (c)	 Other Non-Current Liabilities		   –   	  –   	  –   
			    -   	  –   	  –   	  –
	 Current liabilites				  
	 (a) 	 Financial liabilities				  
		  Borrowings	 9	  –   	  –   	  –   
		  Trade payables	 10	  –   	  –   	  –   
	 (b) 	 Other current liabilities	 11	  1,567,155 	  585,834 	  628,293 
	 (c) 	 Short Term Provisions	 12	  2,969,000 	  40,027,699 	  109,000 
	 (d) 	 Current Tax Liabilities (net)		   –   	  –   	  –   
			    	 4,536,155 	  40,613,533 	  737,293 

	 Total Equity and Liabilities		   210,647,686 	  263,993,688 	  78,164,103 

Note: See accompanying notes to financial statements 1-20.
			   For and on behalf of the Board Of Directors
As per our report of even date 
For TSG & Associates		  (Sd/-)	 (Sd/-) 
Chartered Accountants		  K.V.Aiyappan	 S.Chitra Sivaramakrishnan 
F.No: 013133S		  Chairman - DIN: 00117641	 Executive Director - DIN: 00292725 

(Sd/-)			   (Sd/-)	 (Sd/-) 
T.S.Gobinathan		  A.K. Sabesan	 Revathi Sureshkumar 
Partner			  Director - DIN: 02238098	 Director - DIN: 08507052 
Membership No. 025094
		  (Sd/-)	 (Sd/-)	 (Sd/-) 
		  D Parthiban	 M.G. Bhaskar	 Muthulakshmi Ganesh 
Place	 :  Chennai	 Chief Financial Officer	 Director - DIN: 07527509	 Director - DIN: 00286658 
Date	 :  24/05/2024	 PAN: BQAPP5436J

In INR



47

ABIRAMI FINANCIAL SERVICES (INDIA) LIMITED 
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2024

PARTICULARS	 NOTE	 For FY ended	 For FY ended	 For FY ended 
			   NO	   31/03/2024	   31/03/2023	 31/03/2022

Revenue						   
Revenue from Operations		   –   	  –   	  –   
Other Income	 13	  18,312,886 	  198,423,243 	  4,636,852 
Total Income		   18,312,886 	  198,423,243 	  4,636,852 	

Expenses	
Cost of Operations		   –   	  –   	  –   
Purchase of Stock-in-Trade		   –   	  –   	  –   
Changes in inventories of  Work-in-Progress		   –   	  –   	  –   
Employee Benefits Expense	 14	  2,659,906 	  3,947,212 	  1,506,594 
Finance Costs	 15	  124,817 	  3,912 	  3,426 
Depreciation and Amortisation Expense	 1	  79,488 	  181,308 	  917,958 
Other Expenses	 16	  4,532,255 	  8,337,466 	  4,077,736 
Total Expenses		   7,396,466 	  12,469,898 	  6,505,714 

Profit/(loss) before exceptional items and tax		   10,916,420 	  185,953,345 	  (1,868,862)
Exceptional Items		   –   	  –   	  –   
Profit/(loss) before tax		   10,916,420 	  185,953,345 	  (1,868,862)

Tax Expense						    
	 Current Tax		   2,969,000 	  40,000,000 	  –   
	 Tax Relating to Prior years		   (6,567,024)	  –   	  –   
	 Deferred Tax		   –   	  –   	  –   
Profit/(loss) after tax		   14,514,444 	  145,953,345 	  (1,868,862)

Other Comprehensive Income						    
A (i) 	Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss		   –   	  –   	  –   
   (ii) 	Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss	  –   	  –   	  –   

B (i) 	Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss		   –   	  –   	  –   
  (ii) 	 Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit or loss	  –   	  –   	  –   

Total Comprehensive Income for the year (Comprising Profit and Other  
Comprehensive Income for the period)		   14,514,444 	  145,953,345 	  (1,868,862)

Earnings per Equity Share
	 Basic (Rs.)	 17	  2.69 	  24.33 	  (0.31)
	 Diluted (Rs.)					   
Significant Accounting Policies	 18			 
Notes to Accounts	 19

Note: See accompanying notes to financial statements 1-20.

		  For and on behalf of the Board Of Directors

As per our report of even date 
For TSG & Associates		  (Sd/-)	 (Sd/-) 
Chartered Accountants		  K.V.Aiyappan	 S.Chitra Sivaramakrishnan 
F.No: 013133S		  Chairman - DIN: 00117641	 Executive Director - DIN: 00292725 

(Sd/-)			   (Sd/-)	 (Sd/-) 
T.S.Gobinathan		  A.K. Sabesan	 Revathi Sureshkumar 
Partner			  Director - DIN: 02238098	 Director - DIN: 08507052 
Membership No. 025094
		  (Sd/-)	 (Sd/-)	 (Sd/-) 
		  D Parthiban	 M.G. Bhaskar	 Muthulakshmi Ganesh 
Place	 :  Chennai	 Chief Financial Officer	 Director - DIN: 07527509	 Director - DIN: 00286658 
Date	 :  24/05/2024	 PAN: BQAPP5436J

In INR
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024
					     in INR
			   Year Ended	 Year Ended	 Year Ended 
			   March 31, 2024	 March 31, 2023	 March 31, 2022
A.	 CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Net Profit before Tax 	  10,916,420 	  185,953,345 	  (1,868,862)
      Less:	 Interest on Income Tax Refund	  (322,640)	  (47,614)	  (8,320)
      Less:	 Interest on Fixed Deposit	  (13,890,518)	  (8,755,948)	  (2,205,945)
      Less: 	 Dividend from Investment	  (53,370)	  (27,387)	  (13,965)
      Add: 	 Provision for Depreciation	  79,489 	  181,314 	  917,958 
      Less: 	 Short Provision	  –	 –	 –   
      Less: 	 Profit on Sale of Fixed Assets	  –   	  (189,308,754)	  –   
      Less: 	 Non Operating Item - ( Profit on Sale of Investments)	  (3,855,476)	  (1,444,961)	  (1,054,618)
      Add: 	 Non Operating Item - ( Loss on Sale of Investments)	  409,738 	  306,451 	  367,991 
      Add:	 Non Cash item - (Assets lost due to floods - Write off)	  –   	  –   	  –   
Net profit before tax and extra-ordinary items	  (6,716,357)	  (13,143,554)	  (3,865,762)
      Add/Less: Tax Provision	  6,365,950 	  (37,848,287)	  –   
Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes	  (350,407)	  (50,991,841)	  (3,865,762)

Decrease/(Increase) in Current Assets	  31,934,530 	  (44,222,840)	  (795)
Decrease/(Increase) in Other Current Assets	  941,296 	  (34,100)	  –   
Increase/(Decrease) in Short Term Provisions	  (38,327,699)	  38,414,699 	  14,997 
Increase/(Decrease) in Other Current Liabilities	  981,323 	  (42,459)	  49,955 
Increase/(Decrease) in Trade and Other Payables	  –   	  –   	  –   
Cash generated from Operations	  (4,820,957)	  (56,876,541)	  (3,801,605)

B.	 CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
	 Purchase of Investment	  (18,103,179)	  (7,435,305)	  (7,946,134)
	 Sale of Fixed Assets	  –   	  210,000,000 	  –   
	 Sale of Investments	  19,111,559 	  6,199,913 	  9,254,260 
	 Purchase of Fixed Asstes	  –   	  (186,152)	  (199,300)
	 Investment in Fixed Deposit	  –   	  –   	  –   
	 Interest Received	  14,213,158 	  8,803,562 	  2,214,265 
	 Dividend from Investments	  53,370 	  27,387 	  13,965 
	 Net cash outflow from Investing Activities	  15,274,908 	  217,409,404 	  3,337,056 

C.	 CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
	 Buy Back of Shares	  (14,983,068)	  –   	  –   
	 Decrease in Long Term Borrowings	  –   	  –   	  –   
	 Earlier Year Provision Adj	  –   	  –   	  –   
	 Dividend & DDT paid	  (10,800,000)	  –   	  –   
	 Reserve adjusted on Buy Back	  (6,000,000)	  –   	  –   
	 Increase in Long Term deposits	  –   	  –   	  –   
	 Net cash from Financing Activities	  (31,783,068)	  –   	  –     

Net Increase in cash and cash Equivalents (A+B+C)	  (21,329,117)	  160,532,863 	  (464,549) 

Cash and Cash Equivalents at beginning of the period	  210,031,401 	  49,498,538 	  49,963,087  

Cash and Cash Equivalents at end of the period	  188,702,284 	  210,031,401 	  49,498,538 

As per our report of even date 
For TSG & Associates		  (Sd/-)	 (Sd/-) 
Chartered Accountants		  K.V.Aiyappan	 S.Chitra Sivaramakrishnan 
F.No: 013133S		  Chairman	 Executive Director  
			   DIN: 00117641	 DIN: 00292725

(Sd/-)			   (Sd/-)	 (Sd/-) 
T.S.Gobinathan		  A.K. Sabesan	 Revathi Sureshkumar 
Partner			  Director	 Director 
Membership No. 025094		  DIN: 02238098	 DIN: 08507052

		  (Sd/-)	 (Sd/-)	 (Sd/-) 
		  D Parthiban	 M.G. Bhaskar	 Muthulakshmi Ganesh 
Place	 :  Chennai	 Chief Financial Officer	 Director	 Director 
Date	 :  24/05/2024	 PAN: BQAPP5436J	 DIN: 07527509	 DIN: 00286658
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

						      in INR 

				    Year Ended	 Year Ended	 Year Ended 

				    March 31, 2024 	  March 31, 2023 	  March 31, 2022

Note - 2		    
Investments Non-Current 

(i)   Investment in Equity Shares		    9,112,921 	  6,496,590 	  4,122,698	  

(ii)  Investment in Futures & Options		   (178,972)	 –   	  – 

				      8,933,949 	  6,496,590 	  4,122,698

Note - 3									       
Other Financial Assets Non-Current

	 Security Deposits & Charges : 
		  Sales Tax Deposit		   –   	  –   	  12,000  
		  Telephone Deposit		   99,476 	  99,476 	  101,220  
		  Electricity Deposit		    –   	  957,602 	  957,602   
		  Postal Ballot Deposit		    5,400 	  5,400 	  5,400 
		   Integrated Deposit		   9,374 	  9,924 	 – 
		  Other charges		   53,778 	  37,920 	  –  
		  Paterson Deposit		   1,000 	  –   	  –

				      169,028 	  1,110,322 	  1,076,222

Note - 4
Trade Receivables 
	 Unsecured, Considered Good		  –	 –   	  – 
	

				    –	 –   	  –  

Note - 5
Cash and cash equivalents

	 Cash in hand		    77,488 	  45,293 	  32,526  
    	 Balances with banks 
		  In Current accounts		    1,795,747 	  669,606 	  2,247,300  
		  In Deposit account		    185,500,000 	  192,100,000 	  46,800,000  
		  In Escrow account		    –   	  16,800,000 	  – 
	 Unpaid dividend Account		   1,329,049 	  416,502 	  418,712

				     188,702,284 	  210,031,401 	  49,498,538

Note - 6
Other Current Assets 
	 Tax Deducted at Source		    1,395,921 	  2,847,738 	  335,743  
	 Advance Income-Tax:		    1,700,000 	  38,496,000 	  –	
Interest Accrued but not Due		    1,918,829 	  1,431,527 	  199,165  
	 Other Advance		   –   	  –   	  1,259,353 
	 Receivables		    6,630,995 	  412,236 	  444,463  
	 Prepaid Expenses		    –  	  1,330,000 	 –    
	 Trading Margin		    50,000 	  50,000 	  50,000  
	 GST Input Tax Credit		    1,073,592 	  1,635,290 	  338,940	

				      12,769,337 	  46,202,791 	  2,627,664 
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		  Particulars	                                         For the year ended	 For the year ended 
			   March 31, 2024		  March 31, 2022

Note - 7										        
Equity share capital

(i) 	 Authorised
	 Equity Share Capital of face	 		   Number 	  Amount 	  Number 	  Amount 

value of Rs. 10 each 
				     12,000,000 	 120,000,000.00 	  12,000,000 	  120,000,000  

					      12,000,000 	 120,000,000.00 	 12,000,000 	  120,000,000  

(ii)	 Issued and Subscribed
	 Equity Share Capital of face			   Number 	  Amount 	  Number 	  Amount  

value of Rs. 10 each 
		   		    5,400,000 	  54,000,000 	  6,000,000 	  60,000,000 

 					      5,400,000 	  54,000,000 	  6,000,000 	  60,000,000 

(iii)	 Paid Up
	 Equity Share Capital of face			   Number 	  Amount 	  Number 	  Amount 

value of Rs. 10 each 
 				    6,000,000 	 60,000,000.00 	  6,000,000 	  60,000,000 

	 Less: Buyback of Shares			   600,000 	  6,000,000 	  –   	  –
 					      5,400,000 	  54,000,000 	  6,000,000 	  60,000,000  

(iv)	 Reconciliation of number of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year

					     Number 	  Amount 	  Number 	  Amount

	 Balance at the beginning of the year			   6,000,000 	  60,000,000 	  6,000,000 	  60,000,000   
Add:	 Issued during the year			   –   	  –   	 –   	  –  
Less:	 Redeemed during the year			    600,000 	  6,000,000 	 –   	  –

	 Balance at the end of the year			    5,400,000 	  54,000,000 	  6,000,000 	  60,000,000

(v)	 Ordinary Shares

	 Ordinary shares are classified as equity share capital. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issuance of new ordinary shares, 
share options and buyback are recognized as a deduction from equity, net of any tax effects.

(vi)	 Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares

The holders of equity shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time, and are entitled to one vote per share 
at meetings of the Company. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the remaining assets of the Company shall be distributed 
to the holders of equity shares in proportion to the number of shares held to the total equity shares outstanding as on that date. All 
shares rank equally with regard to the Company’s residual assets.

(vii)	  Details of shareholder holding more than 5% share capital

          	 Name of the Equity Shareholder			   31-Mar-2024	 %	 31-Mar-2023	 % 
					     Number of shares		  Number of shares	

	 Kallidaikuruchi Visweswaran Aiyappan	  		  2,465,000 	 46%	  2,465,000 	   41%

	 Sati Teckchand Vaswani			   1,080,000 	 20%	  1,080,000 	 18%	

(viii)	 Details of Forfeited Shares :

	 Details of upfront amount forfeited due to non conversion of Share warrants

(ix)	 Buyback completed in April 2023 :

In line with the resolution passed in Board meeting held on January 12,2023 the buyback of equity shares, from the open market 
route through the Indian stock exchanges, amounting to ₹ 1.68 crore (maximum buyback size, excluding buyback tax) at a price 
not exceeding ₹28 per share (maximum buyback price).

In accordance with Section 69 of the Companies Act, 2013, as at March 31, 2024 , the Company has created ‘Capital Redemption 
Reserve’ of ₹60 lakhs equal to the nominal value of the shares bought back as an appropriation from general reserve and retained 
earnings.

				    31 March 2021 	  31 March 2020 	  31 March 2019

				    (Rs.)	 (Rs.)	 (Rs.)
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(x)	  Dividend :

The final dividend on shares is recorded as a liability on the date of approval by the shareholders. Income tax consequences of 
dividends on financial instruments classified as equity will be recognized according to where the entity originally recognized 
those past transactions or events that generated distributable profits

The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian Rupees. Companies are required to pay / distribute dividend after deducting 
applicable taxes.

The amount of per share dividend recognized as distribution to equity shareholders in accordance with Companies Act, 2013 is 
as follows :

in Rs.
Particulars Year Ended March 31,

2024 2023

Final Dividend for Fiscal Year 2023 2 0

During the year ended March 31, 2023, on account of the final dividend for fiscal 2023 the company has incurred a net cash 
outflow of INR 1.08 crores.

				    Year Ended	 Year Ended	 Year Ended 

				    March 31, 2024 	  March 31, 2023 	  March 31, 2022

Note -8
Other Equity
Reserves And Surplus		

General Reserves 
	 Opening balance		    5,045,627 	  5,045,627 	  5,045,627  
	 Transferred/adjustment during the year		   –   	  –   	  – 
	 Closing balance		   5,045,627 	  5,045,627 	  5,045,627 

Retained earnings 
	 Opening balance		    158,334,528 	  12,381,183 	  14,250,045 
	 Transferred/adjustment during the year		   (31,783,068)	  –   	  – 
	 Profit during the year		    14,514,444 	  145,953,345 	  (1,868,862) 
	 Closing balance		    141,065,904 	  158,334,528 	  12,381,183   
 
Capital Redemption Reserve 
	 Opening balance		   –   	  –   	  – 
	 Transferred/adjustment during the year		   6,000,000   	  –   	  – 
	 Closing balance		   6,000,000   	  –   	  –

Total Reserves And Surplus		    152,111,531 	  163,380,155 	  17,426,810

Money received against share warrants								      
    Opening balance		   –   	  –   	  –   

    Transferred/adjustment during the year		   –   	  –   	  –   

    Closing balance		   –   	  –   	  –

Total Other Equity		   152,111,531 	  163,380,155 	  17,426,810 

(vi) Description of reserves	

Capital redemption reserve
	 In accordance with section 69 of the Indian Companies Act, 2013, the Company creates capital redemption reserve equal to the 	 
	 nominal value of the shares bought back as an appropriation from general reserve / retained earnings.

Retained earnings								      
	 Retained earnings represent the amount of accumulated earnings of the Company.					   
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						      in INR 
				    Year Ended	 Year Ended	 Year Ended 
				    March 31, 2024 	  March 31, 2023 	  March 31, 2022

Note 9
Borrowings - Current 
	 Working Capital Loan from Bank		   –   	  –   	  –   

				    –   	  –   	  –   

Note 10									       
Trade Payables		  –   	  –   	  – 
	 Closing balance		  –   	  –   	  –

Note 11
Other Current Liabilities 
	 Dividend Payable F.Y 2014-2015		    –   	  143,429 	  143,339 
	 Dividend Payable F.Y 2015-2016		     104,131 	  104,185 	  105,705 
	 Dividend Payable F.Y 2016-2017		     91,614 	  92,934 	  93,324  
	 Dividend Payable F.Y 2017-2018		     74,634 	  75,954 	  76,344 
	 Dividend Payable F.Y 2022-2023		   1,057,580 	 –	 – 
	 GST Payable		    32,130 	  24,282 	  69,300		
	 Audit & Filing Fees Payable		   135,000 	  93,000 	  102,000 
	 TDS Payable		   32,914 	  34,050 	  26,731 
	 Quarterly XBRL Filing fees payable		   –   	  –   	  – 
	 Other Charges		   –   	  –   	  – 
	 Sundry Creditors		    39,152 	  18,000 	  11,550

				     1,567,155 	  585,834 	  628,293 

Note 12							     
Provisions Current 
	 Provision for Expenses		   –   	  27,699 	  109,000 

    	 Provisions for Income Tax for FY 2022-23		   –   	  40,000,000 	  – 

   	 Provisions for Income Tax for FY 2023-24		    2,969,000 	  –   	  –   

				      2,969,000 	  40,027,699 	  109,000 

Note 13
Other Income 
	 Interest Received		  –   	  –   	  – 
	 Other Income		   18,312,886 	  198,423,243 	  4,636,852

				     18,312,886 	  198,423,243 	  4,636,852

Note 14
Employee Benefits Expense 
	 Salaries, Wages & Allowances		    1,957,872 	  1,356,900 	  1,047,000 
	 Staff Welfare Expenses		    153,589 	  337,079 	  39,866  
	 Entertainment Expenses		   101,445 	  20,348 	  920  
	 Exgratia, Bonus & Gratuity		    447,000 	  2,232,885 	  418,808 

				     2,659,906 	  3,947,212 	  1,506,594 

Note 15
Finance Costs 
	 Interest Expense on Borrowings		   38,100 	  –   	  –  
	 Bank Charges		    86,717 	  3,912 	  3,426

				      124,817 	  3,912 	  3,426
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						      in INR 
				    Year Ended	 Year Ended	 Year Ended 
				    March 31, 2024 	  March 31, 2023 	  March 31, 2022

Note 16
Other Expenses
	 B. POWER & FUEL	

	 A. Electricity Charges		   95,342 	  213,663 	  244,182 

	 B. Fuel & Oil Expenses		   –	  –	  –   

	 C. Repairs to Building		   147,270 	  190,356 	  286,158 

	 D. Repairs to Machinery		   119,137 	  351,033 	  57,835 

	 E. Insurance		   – 	 –	  7,345 

	 F. Rates & Tax( Excl. Income Tax )		   971,618 	  124,907 	  354,618 

	 G. Audit Fees		   140,000 	  110,000 	  110,000 

	 G. MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSES			 

	 Telephone Charges		   58,640 	  64,216 	  54,156 

	 Subscription and Presents		   6,770 	  54,958 	  90,738 

	 Filing Fees		   103,900 	  63,900 	  71,463 

	 Directors Sitting Fees		   270,000 	  140,000 	  145,000 

	 Pooja Expenses		   21,235 	  11,998 	  14,895 

	 Printing & Stationery		   82,178 	  32,275 	  43,057 

	 Postage & Telegram		   20,281 	  62,065 	  3,575 

	 Travelling & Conveyance		   851,517 	  864,873 	  33,695 

	 Advertisement Expenses		   136,500 	  267,160 	  139,620 

	 Miscellaneous Expenses		   8,444 	  27,916 	  43,447 

	 Professional Charges		   334,806 	  1,528,306 	  205,690 

	 Listing Fees - BSE		   325,000 	  600,000 	  300,000 

	 Security Charges		  –	  57,750 	  150,150 

	 Demat Charges		   20,550 	  23,539 	  58,120 

	 Penalty & Charges		   –	  10,000 	  1,241,000 

	 Custodial Charges		   55,000 	  155,000 	  55,001 

	 Corporate Auction fees		   8,500 	 –	 –  

	 Loss on Trading of shares		   409,737 	  306,451 	  367,991 

	 e-Voting Exp		   40,680 	  35,000 	 –   

	 Rent Paid		   301,200 	  530,100 	 –   

	 Commission on Land		  –	  2,500,000 	  –   

	 Interest on TDS		   3,950 	  –  	  –   

	 Written Off		  –	  12,000 	  –

				    4,532,255 	  8,337,466 	  4,077,736

  Note (i) Details of payment to auditors			 
	 Payment to auditor 
		  Audit fee		   150,000 	  110,000 	  110,000  
		  Tax audit fee		  –	 –	 –	

	 In other capabilities 
		  Taxation matters		   –	 –	 –    
		  For Other Services		   –	 –	 –  

				     150,000 	  110,000 	  110,000 
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						      in INR 
				    Year Ended	 Year Ended	 Year Ended 
				    March 31, 2024 	  March 31, 2023 	  March 31, 2022

Note17

Earnings per Share	

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:

Profit attributable to equity holders of the parent: 
	 Continuing operations		  –   	 –   	 – 
	 Discontinued operation		  –	 –	 –

Profit attributable to equity holders of the parent for basic earnings		           14,514,444 	  145,953,345 	  -1,868,862

Interest on convertible preference shares		  –	 –	 –

Profit attributable to equity holders of the parent adjusted for		             14,514,444 	  145,953,345 	  -1,868,862 
the effect of dilution

Weighted average number of Equity shares for basic EPS*		            5,400,000 	  60,000,000 	  60,000,000 
Effect of dilution:					   

Convertible preference shares		  –	 –	 –

Share options		  –	 –	 – 

Weighted average number of Equity shares adjusted for		            5,400,000 	  6,000,000 	  6,000,000 
the effect of dilution *

Earnings per equity share (for continuing operation):

	 (1)	 Basic		   2.69 	  24.33 	  (0.31) 

	 (2)	 Diluted

Note18

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

a.	 Back Ground:

	 Abirami Financial Services (India) Limited (referred to as “the Company”) is a Public Limited Company 
incorporated on 19/04/1993(CIN:L65993TN1993PLC0241861) and domiciled in India with its registered office 
at Old No.11, New No.2, Parthasarathypuram, T. Nagar, Chennai - 600017. Its shares are listed in Bombay Stock 
Exchange.The Company is having interest in the field of land banking and creating infrastructure for projects 
in the key sectors of integrated life spaces, lifespaces, logistics,warehousing, hospitality, healthcare, education 
clean energy and development of Aquaculture and seafood infrastructure and to deal in whatsoever manner 
in the aquaculture and seafood products..

b.	 Statement of Compliance

	 In accordance with the notification issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, the Company has adopted Indian 
Accounting Standards (referred to as “Ind AS”) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Rules, 2015 with effect from April 1, 2017. Figures for previous periods have been restated as per Ind AS. In 
accordance with Ind AS 101 First-time adoption of Indian Accounting Standards, the Company has presented 
a reconciliation from the presentation of Financial Statements under Accounting Standards notified under the 
Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 (“Previous GAAP”) to Ind AS of shareholders’ equity as at 31st 
March 2024.

	 These Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with Ind AS as notified under the Companies 
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 read with Section 133 of The Companies Act, 2013.
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c.	 Basis of Preparation:
	 The financial statements have been prepared on accrual and going concern basis. The accounting policies are 

applied consistently to all the periods presented in the financial statements, including the preparation of the 
opening IND AS Balance Sheet as at 1st April, 2016 being the ‘date of transition to IND AS’.

d.	 Use of Estimates:
	 The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions 

in the application of accounting policies that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and 
expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates. Continuous evaluation is done on the estimation and 
judgements based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are 
believed to be reasonable. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised prospectively.

e.	 Revenue Recognition:
	 Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the 

rate applicable.

	 Revenue from sale of property is recognised when all significant risks and rewards of ownership of the property 
is transferred to the buyer of the property.

f.	 Property, Plant And Equipment:
	 On adoption of Ind AS, the Company retained the carrying value for all of its property, plant and equipment 

as recognized in the financial statements as at the date of transition to Ind AS, measured as per the previous 
GAAP and used that as its deemed cost as permitted by Ind AS 101 ‘First-time Adoption of Indian Accounting 
Standards’.

	 Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost [i.e., cost of acquisition or construction inclusive of freight, 
erection and commissioning charges, non-refundable duties and taxes, expenditure during construction 
period, borrowing costs (in case of a qualifying asset) up to the date of acquisition/ installation], net of 
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

	 An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon 
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on 
de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying 
amount of the asset) is recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

g.	 Intangible Assets:
	 For transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all its intangible assets 

recognized as of April 1, 2016 (transition date) measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value 
as its deemed cost as of the transition date.

	 Intangible assets acquired are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible 
assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.

	 Intangible assets are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is 
an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and amortisation method for 
an intangible asset are reviewed at the end of each reporting period. The amortisation expense on intangible 
asset is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of 
another asset.
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	 Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the 
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss 
when the asset is derecognised.

h.	 Cash and Cash Equivalents
	 Cash and Cash Equivalents consist of cash on hand and balances with banks.

i.	 Taxation:
	 Income tax expenses for the year comprises of current tax and deferred tax. It is recognized in the Statement 

of Profit and Loss except to the extent it relates to a business combination or to an item which is recognized 
directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.

Current Income Tax 
	 Current tax is the expected tax payable /receivable on the taxable income /loss for the year using applicable tax rates 

at the Balance Sheet date, and any adjustment to taxes in respect of previous years. Interest income/expenses and 
penalties, if any related to income tax are included in current tax expense.

	 Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized 
amount and there is an intention to settle the asset and liability on net basis.

j.	 Provision for Liabilities and Charges, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
	 A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation 

that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle 
the obligation.

	 Contingent Liabilities are not recognized but are disclosed in the notes unless the possibility of an outflow of 
resources embodying economic benefits is remote.

	 Contingent assets are not recognised but disclosed in the Financial Statements when an inflow of economic 
benefits is probable.

	 Contingent liability and contingent assets are reviewed at each reporting date.

k.	 Earnings per Share

	 The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (“EPS”) data for its equity shares. Basic EPS is 
calculated by dividing the profit and loss attributable to equity shareholders of the Company by the weighted 
average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting 
the profit and loss attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of equity shares 
outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

l.	 Cash Flow Statement
	 Cash flows are reported using indirect method as set out in Ind AS -7 “Statement of Cash Flows”, whereby profit 

/ (loss) before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of 
past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of 
the Company are segregated based on the available information.

m.	 Financial Instrument
	 Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual 

provisions of the instruments.
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						      in INR 
				    Year Ended	 Year Ended	 Year Ended 
				    March 31, 2024 	  March 31, 2023 	  March 31, 2022

Note 20
Notes to Accounts	 .

1	 Expenditure on Employees who were in receipt of  
	 Remuneration of

	 I)	 Not less than Rs.3.00 Lacs for the year, if employed 
  		  throughout the year		  –	 –	 –

	 II) 	 Not less than Rs.25,000/- per month, if employed for  
   		  part of the year 		  –	 –	 –

2	 Related Party Transaction			 
	 Remuneration to the director Mrs. Chitra Sivaramakrishnan	  	  450,000.00 	  324,000.00 	  180,000.00   
	 Remuneration to the director Mr. P.Sankaran	  	  -   	  100,000.00 	  300,000.00 
	 Rent to Mr. K.V. Aiyappan		    301,200.00 	  170,100.00 	  -

4	 Expenditure incurred in foreign Currency		  –	 –	 –  

5	 Earning in Foreign Currency		  –	 –	 –  

6	 Quantitative details of Stock	  	 –	 –	 –   

	 Purchases		  –	 –	 –   

	 Sales		  –	 –	 –  

	 Stock		  –	 –	 –  

7	 Depreciation has been provided as per Rates   
	 provided in Schedule XIV of the Companies Act		    79,488.00 	  181,314.00 	  917,958.00 



61

RA
TI

O
 A

N
A

LY
SI

S

20
24

20
23

20
22

G
ro

w
th

 R
at

io

1
Sa

le
s 

G
ro

w
th

 - 
  

 - 
  

0.
00

%
 - 

  
0.

00
%

 - 
  

0.
00

%
 - 

  
 - 

  
 - 

  
 - 

  

2
In

co
m

e 
G

ro
w

th
 In

cr
ea

se
/ D

ec
re

as
e 

in
 In

co
m

e 
(1

80
,1

10
,3

57
.0

0)
-9

1%
 1

93
,7

86
,3

91
.0

0 
41

79
.2

7%
 (4

71
,1

37
.0

0)
-9

.2
2%

Pr
ev

io
us

 Y
ea

r I
nc

om
e

 1
98

,4
23

,2
43

.0
0 

 4
,6

36
,8

52
.0

0 
 5

,1
07

,9
89

.0
0 

Li
qu

id
it

y 
Ra

ti
o

1
Cu

rr
en

t A
ss

et
 R

at
io

Cu
rr

en
t A

ss
et

s 
 2

01
,4

71
,6

21
.0

0 
44

41
%

 2
56

,2
34

,1
92

.0
0 

63
0.

91
%

 5
2,

12
6,

20
2.

00
 

70
69

.9
4%

Cu
rr

en
t L

ia
bi

lit
ie

s
 4

,5
36

,1
55

.0
0 

 4
0,

61
3,

53
3.

00
 

 7
37

,2
93

.0
0 

2
Q

ui
ck

 R
at

io
Q

ui
ck

  A
ss

et
 1

88
,7

02
,2

84
.0

0 
41

60
%

 2
10

,0
31

,4
01

.0
0 

51
7.

15
%

 4
9,

49
8,

53
8.

00
 

67
13

.5
5%

Cu
rr

en
t L

ia
bi

lit
ie

s
 4

,5
36

,1
55

.0
0 

 4
0,

61
3,

53
3.

00
 

 7
37

,2
93

.0
0 

Pr
ofi

ta
bi

lit
y 

Ra
ti

o

1
N

et
 P

ro
fit

 R
at

io
N

et
 In

co
m

e
 1

4,
51

4,
44

4.
00

 
79

%
 1

45
,9

53
,3

45
.0

0 
73

.5
6%

 (1
,8

68
,8

62
.0

0)
-4

0.
30

%
Re

ve
nu

e
 1

8,
31

2,
88

6.
00

 
 1

98
,4

23
,2

43
.0

0 
 4

,6
36

,8
52

.0
0 

2
Re

tu
rn

 o
n 

Eq
ui

ty
N

et
 In

co
m

e
 1

4,
51

4,
44

4.
00

 
7%

 1
45

,9
53

,3
45

.0
0 

97
.0

4%
 (1

,8
68

,8
62

.0
0)

-2
.3

8%
Av

er
ag

e 
Sh

ar
eh

ol
de

r's
 E

qu
ity

 2
14

,7
45

,8
43

.0
0 

 1
50

,4
03

,4
82

.5
0 

 7
8,

36
1,

24
1.

00
 

3
Re

tu
rn

 o
n 

In
ve

st
m

en
t

N
et

 In
co

m
e

 1
4,

51
4,

44
4.

00
 

7%
 1

45
,9

53
,3

45
.0

0 
55

.2
9%

 (1
,8

68
,8

62
.0

0)
-2

.3
9%

To
ta

l I
nv

es
tm

en
t

 2
10

,6
47

,6
86

.0
0 

 2
63

,9
93

,6
88

.0
0 

 7
8,

16
4,

10
3.

00
 

4
Re

tu
rn

 o
n 

Ca
pi

ta
l E

m
pl

oy
ed

N
et

 In
co

m
e

 1
4,

51
4,

44
4.

00
 

7%
 1

45
,9

53
,3

45
.0

0 
65

.3
4%

 (1
,8

68
,8

62
.0

0)
-2

.4
1%

Ca
pi

ta
l E

m
pl

oy
ed

 2
06

,1
11

,5
31

.0
0 

 2
23

,3
80

,1
55

.0
0 

 7
7,

42
6,

81
0.

00
 


